# THE JOURNAL OF THE

# NORTHUMBERLAND AND DURHAM

# FAMILY HISTORY SOCIETY

Vol 5 No 1

October 1979

CONTENTS

EDITORIAL		2
KNOW YOUR PARISH - I. MEDOMSLEY, COUNTY DURHAM	Dr D.W. Burdon	2
THE JUNE MEETING - QUIZ AND SOCIAL EVENING		3
THE "RUNAWAY REGISTERS" AT HADDINGTON		5
SO YOU THINK YOU HAVE TROUBLES	G.T. Millican	8
MEMBERS AND THEIR INTERESTS		9
SECOND TIME AROUND		11
CHANGES OF ADDRESS		12
CALLING ARIZONA		12
HELP WANTED		12
QUIZ ANSWERS		13
LETTER TO THE EDITOR		14
A STRAY MARRIAGE		14
FUTURE PROGRAMME		14
INDEX TO VOLUME FOUR GENEALOGICAL NAME INDEX PLACE INDEX ARTICLES AND FEATURES		15 15 22 28
THE WITCH OF WASHINGTON	K.D.D. Henderson	<b>30</b> 1
STRAY		30

All items in this Journal are the copyright of the Northumberland and Durham Family History Society or its contributors.

Correspondence connected with the Journal should be addressed to the Editor, Mr G. Nicholson, 57 Manor Park, Concord, Washington, Tyne & Wear, NE37 2BU. All other correspondence should be addressed to the Secretary, Mr J.A. Readdie, 38 Archery Rise, Neville's Cross, Durham, DH1 4LA. <u>PLEASE</u> always include stamps for return postage when writing (two International Reply Coupons from overseas members) and quote your membership number.

Books from the Society's Library may be borrowed from, and should be returned to, the Librarian, Dr M.E. Wilson, 33 Archery Rise, Neville's Cross, Durham, DH1 4LA.

- 1 -

### EDITORIAL

Once again the thanks of the Society must go to Mr D.G. Linley for compiling the index to our last volume. Our thanks also to all who have sent articles for publication. We are again in the happy situation of having far more material available than we can publish in one issue, so if you have contributed something but do not see it here - you have not been forgotten; all will appear in due course.

Our "Know Your Parish" series is off to a good start and we hope Dr Burdon's effort will stimulate many other contributions of this type. Another innovation this issue is that we have a "Letter to the Editor". We would like to continue publishing these, so if you have any <u>brief</u> comment on anything at all relevant to the Society or to the Journal, it will be welcomed. Brevity, however, is important - 150 to 200 words is the ideal length for this sort of contribution.

# KNOW YOUR PARISH

## I. MEDOMSLEY, COUNTY DURHAM

### Dr D.W. Burdon

The parish of Medomsley was originally a chapelry within the parish of Lanchester, in Chester Ward of County Durham. From 1727 to 1838 it was annexed to the neighbouring chapelry of Ebchester, and both communities were served by a single priest. The church of St. Mary Magdalen, which has its origins in the 12th century, is situated in Medomsley village, pleasantly located on high ground overlooking the Derwent valley.

The old chapelry consisted of three townships, each containing a village and several farmsteads. Medomsley township included Bradley, Byerside, Darwencote and Hamsterley, and corresponds closely to the modern parish of Medomsley. Benfieldside contained the village of Shotley Bridge and five farms, including Snows Green and The Law. The third township was Conside with Knitsley, and contained Consett. In 1847, Benfieldside, part of Conside with Knitsley and some detached portions of Ebchester became a separate chapelry. The remaining portion of Conside with Knitsley became the parish of Consett in 1862. Within the reduced parish of Medomsley a chapel of ease, named Christ Church, was commenced at Hamsterley in 1892, to replace a schoolroom used for services since about 1852.

Medomsley is a rural parish and until the opening of coal mines from 1839 onwards the inhabitants were mainly employed in agriculture. Some parishioners, however, were described as miners before the mines opened, and these were perhaps employed at nearby Pontop. In 1793 it was stated in the Durham "Diocesan Book" that there were about a hundred houses in the chapelry, and by 1801 this had risen to 157. The population in 1801 was 754. By 1851 the population of the township of Medomsley had doubled, whereas that of Benfieldside, and of Conside with Knitsley, had increased 10-fold and 20-fold respectively. It was not until 1881 that Medomsley achieved a 10-fold increase in population.

The parish registers of Medomsley commence in 1608 and have been deposited at Durham Record Office. During the period 1743-1761 there is a sharp fall in the number of recorded baptisms. Burials are erratic from 1730 to 1761 and then cease until 1783. There are transcripts of the registers 1608-1730 at Gateshead and Newcastle Reference Libraries, and marriages for this period are in Boyd's Marriage Index. Baptisms are included in the LDS microfiche index (CFI). The Bishop's Transcripts commence in 1766, but those for the years beginning March 1767 and 1785 are missing. The registers of Christ Church, Hamsterley, commencing 1852, and of Benfieldside St. Cuthbert, commencing 1848, have also been deposited in Durham Record Office.

The earliest Quaker meeting house in County Durham was established in Benfieldside, but was subsequently abandoned. The Diocesan Book for 1793 states that John Swinburn and his family, and a husbandman who worked under him, were the only papiets, and that there were three families of Methodists. With the rapid growth of population in the nineteenth century Free, Primitive and Wesleyar Methodist, and other nonconformist chapels were built in Medomsley and its daughter parishes.

Apart from parish registers, there are few other genealogical sources. The Churchwardens' Accounts 1803-1853 are deposited at Durham Record Office. Land tax returns start in 1759, but there are only eleven returns available before 1820. Mawson's Deeds, deposited at the Department of Palaeography and Diplomatic, Durham University, include material relating to Medomsley, and there are also some Medomsley Deeds at the County Record Office. Medomsley Fell was enclosed by the Lanchester Inclosure Act of 1773, and the tithe apportionment was made in 1817.

The main landowners were the families of Hall, Hunter, Swinburn and Surtees. Accounts of these appear in the principal local histories and in the MS collections at Newcastle Reference Library.

Christopher Hunter, M.D. (1675-1757), the antiquary, was born at Medomsley. After his death, his extensive manuscript notes were dispersed, but it is not known whether any of them referred to Medomsley. Two volumes, consisting of ecclestastical records, are in the Dean and Chapter Library, Durham, and another in the Allgood of Nunwick MSS at Northumberland County Record Office. The latter contains a little genealogical material, especially of the Hunter family. A MS history of Medomsley, prepared by the W.I., is held at Durham Record Office.

#### THE JUNE MEETING

#### QUIZ AND SOCIAL EVENING

Members who made the journey to the Wheatsheaf Hotel, Woolsington, enjoyed a convivial evening which provided the opportunity to discuss genealogical and other topics informally, over a drink, and to enjoy the excellent The highlight of the evening was undoubtedly the eagerly awaited buffet. Great Genealogical Quiz, in which a team representing Northumberland (Mr D.G. Mason and Mr W.E. Wallace) was narrowly defeated by the County Durham side (Mr G. Nicholson and Mr R.G. Hewitson). Northumberland, in fact, took an early lead and held it most of the time but fell in the end to the relentless pressure of a County Durham side desperate to complete the business and return to the bar. As the questions and answers were found interesting and educational by those present, we give the questions here - and the answers on p.13. Our thanks must go to our chairman, Adam Bunting and to his wife Joan for compiling the questions and to Adam for acting as chairman of the Quiz.

# ROUND 1 - DATES

No.

Why are these dates important to genealogists? (a) 1538; (b) 1812; (c) 1754; (d) 1597; (e) 1653; (f) 1858.

# ROUND 2 - WHERE?

Where would you go to find and search the following records? (a) Records of the City & Guilds of London.

- (b) Records of the Archbishopric of York.
- (c) Records of the Dean and Chapter of Durham.
- (d) Old Parish Registers in Scotland.
- (e) A huge index of all 18th-century apprenticeships.
- (f) Most original nonconformist registers.

#### ROUND 3 - WILLS

- (a) Where is the Principal Probate Registry?
- (b) Name one type of extra document that can often be found with an old will.
- (c) If a person died intestate, what could his next of kin do?
- (d) Whom did curation and tuition bonds affect?
- (e) What was a "peculiar"?
- (f) Were women allowed to make wills in the 18th century?

# ROUND 4 - NORTHUMBERLAND AND DURHAM

- (a) How many ancient Newcastle parishes (pre-1800) are there?
- (b) Name them.
- (c) How many ancient Durham City parishes are there?
- (d) Name any four.
- (e) In what <u>parishes</u> were the following townships: Ovington, Killingworth, Otterburn?
- (f) What places are associated with these families: Trevelyan & Tankerville?
- (g) In what parishes were the following townships: Lambton, Raby, Tudhoe?
- (h) What places are associated with these families: Neville and Tempest?
- (i) Which <u>one</u> of the following is <u>not</u> in Boyd's Marriage Index: Holy Island, Wooler, Tynemouth, Felton, Kirknewton?
- (j) Which one of the following is not in Boyd's Marriage Index: Boldon, Washington, Durham St. Oswald, Norton, Gateshead?
- (k) If a man died with lands and property in Allendale, where would his will be proved?
- (1) Name one place outside Durham and Northumberland whose people had to prove their wills at Durham, at the Consistory Court.
- (m) For what industry were the following once famous: (i) Seaton Sluice;
   (ii) Bedlington (apart from coal and shipbuilding); (iii) St. John's Chapel; (iv) South Shields?
- ROUND 5 JOBS

What sort of work did the following do? (All from N.E. industries)

(a) A corver;
(b) a viewer;
(c) a cordwainer;
(d) a fuller;
(e) a hostman;
(f) a runner;
(g) a chairman;
(h) a hammerman.

#### ROUND 6 - ORIGINS OF NAMES

What occupations did the following surnames stem from?

(a) Turner;
(b) Coward;
(c) Conyer;
(d) Webster;
(e) Whitbread;
(f) Fletcher;
(g) Bailey;
(h) Biddell;
(i) Spellman;
(j) Nasmith.

#### ROUND 7 - MISCELLANEOUS

- (a) What was the lower age limit for service in the militia?
- (b) What was the upper age limit for service in the militia?
- (c) Where are the Chaplains' Returns kept?
- (d) What are the Chaplains' Returns?
- (e) In Vol. 5 of the National Index of Parish Registers there is an entry: "Registers of Jesuit House, Worcester, 1685-1720". Why should this entry be treated with caution?
- (f) JOHN and RALPH are brothers. JOHN has two sons, TOM and DICK. RALPH has one son, HARRY. TOM, DICK & HARRY all have one son: TOM, jun., DICK, jun., and HARRY, jun. What relationship is RALPH to DICK, jun.?
- (g) What relationship is TOM, jun., to HARRY?
- (h) When was the Hearth Tax first imposed?

(i) When was the first National Census?

(j) What is the only County Durham parish register to start in 1538?

## ROUND 8 - HERALDRY

(a) What, in heraldry, is (i) a crest; (ii) a bend?
(b) What colour or metal is (i) "or"; (ii) "gules"; (iii) "argent"; (iv) "sable"?
(c) What is "canting arms"?
(d) What is a "label"?

# THE "RUNAWAY REGISTERS" AT HADDINGTON

"Gretna Green was not the only place where runaway couples from England were married .... There was an Episcopal Church at Haddington which was convenient for such as came north via Newcastle and Berwick-on-Tweed, and it cannot be doubted that the services of a duly ordained clergyman of the Church were preferred by many to the rough and ready, though efficacious, offices of the blacksmith on the western end of the Borders." These words in "Northern Notes and Queries" (or "The Scottish Antiquary"), published in Edinburgh at the end of the last century, preface a useful list of marriages which took place between 1762 and 1795, and which "are contained in three thin quarto Volumes, which have been called, not unfitly 'The Runaway Registers'." The full list comprises details of 224 marriages of couples from all parts of England and appears in Volume 3, pages 68-71 and 118-127, and Volume 4, pages 14-17. Those relating to people from Northumberland or Durham are numerous, and we print them below.

# Register of Marriages for the English Episcopal Chapel in Hadington (sic), N. Britain

1763	April 29 Aug 31	John WRIGHT & Mary MORROW, Chester-le-Street, Durham. Wm HOW of Haughton & Jane GARTHWAITE of Bp. Auckland, Durham.
1765	Feby 3	Thomas BASNET, Weaver, and Mary SHIPTON, Widow, both of
	·	Darlington, Durham.
1765	May 14	Mark WHITEHEAD, Sailor, & Kath. NESBITT, both of South Shields,
	-	Durham.
1764	May 21	Ralph WALKER of Durham, & Eliz. ROBSON of Haughton-le-Spring.
	July 2	Daniel YOUNG, Surgeon, & Eleanor LOCKHART, both of Berwick.
	July 12	Jerom RUDD, Surgeon & Hannah ALLEN, both of Darlington.
(NOTE	•	rinted as 1764, the three marriages above seem to have taken
		nd "Northern Note" indicates that in the privately printed
-	•	Allans of Blackwell Grange, the Rudd-Allen marriage is given
	ly 20, 1765	
	Sept 30	William TATEHAM of Stockton, Merchant, & Jane Chrisop of the
1705	Sept 30	same Parish, Spinster. Witnesses: Alice Tatham, Barthw Bower.
	Oct 5	Thomas SMART of Whickham, Co. Durham, Gent., & Margaret CARR of St. Oswald, City of Durham. Wit. Margaret Mason, Barthw Bower.
	Nov 6	Thomas CROFT, Farmer, & Elizabeth White, Spinster, both of Sedgefield, Co. Durham. Wit. Barthw. Bower, John Foster.
1766	Jan 19	Patrick OGILVIE of Dundee, last from Newcastle, Shipmaster, & Ann BURN of St. George's in the East, London, Spinster. Wit. Ka. Raitt, Barthw. Bower.
	March 31	James MOORE of St. Nicholas, Newcastle upon Tyne, Mercht., & Mary ADAMSON of the same parish, spinster. Wit. Helen Anderson, Barthw. Bower.
	May 27	William MENZIES of Ancroft, Co. Durham & Ann CROWTHER of Lowich (sic), Co. Durham. Wit. Selby Crowther, Barthw. Bower.

1766	July 23	John HALL of Branspeth, Co. Durham, Mercht., & Alice BEDFORD of the city of Durham & Parish of Elvet, Spinster. Wit. Wm. Gurner, Barthw. Bower.
	Aug 17	John REDHEAD of St. Nicholas, city of Durham, Grocer & Isabella AISLEY of same parish, Spinster. Wit. Wm Garner, John Dunlop.
	Aug 25	John COLE, Gent., & Sarah SALKELD, Spinster, both of Chester- le-Street, Co. Durham. Wit. James Fairbairn, Barthw. Bower.
	Dec 21	William BURDON of Stranton, Shipmaster, & Mary CLAXTON of Hart & Chapelry of Hartlepool, both Co. Durham. Wit. James Fairbairn, Barthw. Bower.
1767	May 8	Henry HENDERSON of Embleton, Co. Northumberland, Butcher, & Catherine BROOKS of Alnwick, same county, Spinster. Wit. John Johnston, Barthw. Bower.
	Aug 2	Gerrard SELBY, Esq., Commander of His Majesty's Cutter "Meredith" and Catherine PEMBLE, Spinster, both of the chapelry of Belford, Co. Northumberland. Wit. James Fair- bairn, Bw. Bower.
	Oct 28	William DENT of Darlington, Mercht., & Mary ROBSON of the same Parish, Spinster. Wit. Edwd. Lister, Will Andrews, John Carfrai.
1768	Feb l	John MITCHISON of All Saints, Newcastle, Plummer & Elizabeth GREENHOW of St. Andrews in Newcastle, Spinster. Wit. Barthw. Bower, Wm Garner.
	April 5	Thomas LINDSAY of Alnwick, Schoolmaster, & Elizabeth REAY of St. Andrew, Newcastle. Witc. Susannah Mitchison, Barthw. Bower.
	April 12	Thomas GREENWELL of All Saints, Newcastle, Tallow-Chandler, & Ann SMITH of Wolsingham, Co. Durham, Spinster. Wit. Barthw. Bower, John Greenwell.
	June 21	Thos. SAMPLE of Eglingham, Co. Northumberland, Farmer, & Margaret SMITH of Belford, same co., Spinster. Wit. William Garner, Gilbert M'Gillivray.
	July 21	Thomas DAIL of Whitby, Co. York, Mariner, & Ann DURHAM of South Shields, Co. Durham, Spinster. Wit. Martha Major, Barthw. Bower.
	Sept 2 <b>7</b>	John LANDELL of St. John, Newcastle, Merchant & Jane GREENHORN of Pryton, Spinster. Wit. John Brown, Barthw. Bower.
	Nov 14	John SHERRATT of St. Martins in the Fields, Co. Middlesex, Esq., Lieutenant in the Royal Regiment of Foot, & Jane JEFFERIES of Ford, Co. Northumberland, Spinster. Wit.
1769	June 25	Barthw. Bower, Gilbert M'Gillivray. Thomas CARSE of Berwick-upon-Tweed, Miller, & Eliz. SCOT of
	Aug 16	same Town. Wit. John Hoy, Alex. Fraser. John BURN, M.D., & Elizabeth ALDER, Widow, both of Berwick- upon-Tweed. Wit. Sarah Fairbairn, Barthw. Bower.
	Dec 12	James THORBURN of Ford, Farmer, & Elizabeth MENZIES of Brankstone, both Co. Northumberland. Wit. James Fairbairn, Francis Thorburn.
1770	June 30	John MILLS of Morpeth, Co. Northumberland, & Ann SCOTT of the same parish. Wit. William Willey, Barthw. Bower.
1 <b>77</b> 1	Oct 15	John DODDS of Warkworth, Co. Northumberland, Mason, & Eliza- beth PATTISON of the same parish. Wit. Barthw. Bower, John Pierie.
	Nov 6	Archibald MEGGET, Esq., of Gifford, East Lothian, & Elizabeth WELLS of Darlington, Spinster. Wit. T. Innocent, Jas. Fairbairn.
1772	April 11	Henry HAMMOND of Newport Pratt, Co. Mayo, but late of Berwick- upon-Tweed, & Mary NEALSON of Berwick. Wit. George Goodwill, Barthw. Bower.

1772 July 28 The Revd. James CRUIKSHANKS, Minister of the Congregation of Protestant Dissenters in Shaw's Lane, Berwick-upon-Tweed, and Margaret DODS of the same congregation. Wit. Barthw. Bower, Wm Garner. Oct 10 Thos DODDS of Cornhill, Co. Durham, Toll-bar keeper, & Mary MILLER, late of North Shields, now of Cornhill, aforesd. Wit. John Nisbet, Thomas Hann. Nov 11 John BAILLIE of Berwick-upon-Tweed, Shopkeeper, & Margaret JEFFIRY (signed Geffiry) of the same. Wit. Barthw. Bower, Gabriel Wilson. John SCOTT [later Lord Eldon] of the parish of All Saints Nov 19 in Newcastle-upon-Tyne, Fellow of University College in Oxford, & Elizabeth SURTEES of St. Nicholas Parish in the same town, spinster, were married at Blackshiels, N. Britain according to the form of (sic). Wit. James Fairbairn, Thos. Fairbairn. 1773 June 12 James BOLTON of Wooler, Co. Northumberland, Mason, & Isabel JAMIESON of the same parish. Wit. William Litster, Sarah Fairbairn. Aug 16 George HALL of Felton, Co. Northumberland, and Jane CARR Wit. Wm. Garner, George Horsbrough. of the same parish. John WILSON of Alnwick, Co. Northumberland, Surgeon, & Ann Aug 19 WILSON of the same parish. Wit. James Fairbairn, Barthw. Bower. Oct 13 Samuel WIDDEL of Shilbottle, Co. Northumberland, Farmer, & Jane PAXTON of the same parish. Wit. Barthw. Bower, Betty Smith. 1774 April 29 George HENDERSON of Newton, Co. Northumberland, Miller, & Jane MENZIES of Cornhill, Co. Durham. Wit. Barthw. Bower, James Fairbairn. Oct 20 Thomas HINDMARSH of Berwick-upon-Tweed, Joiner & Cabinet Maker, & Elizabeth ALDER of the same parish. Wit. Wilfrid Younghusband, James Fairbairn. 1775 Sep 27 Edward STEEL of Berwick-upon-Tweed, Mariner, & Isabella HOG of the same parish. Wit. Thomas Carss, Josiah Dods, Isable Steel. Dec 3 James BLACK of Tweedmouth, Co. Durham, Barber and Peruke Maker, & Mary LAMBERT of the same parish, widow. Wit. Barthw. Bower, Henry Jacobson. 1777 Oct 5 William Augustus CANE, Lieutenant in His Majesty's Second Regiment of Foot, & Dorothy OGLE of St. Johns, Newcastle. Wit. John Butler, Gilbert M'Gillivry. 1778 June 4 Robert GILLIES of Berwick-on-Tweed, Mason, & Margaret CLARK of the same Town. Wit. Jas. Nisbet, Geo. Foster. June 27 William Bacon FORSTER of Adderstone, Co. Northumberland, Esq., & Lady Katherine TURNOUR of Kirisford, Co. Sussex, md. 'in this Chapel'. Wit. Jas. Nisbet, James Fairbairn, Ann Boxall. Sep 22 Robert RICHARDSON, Junr., of Alnwick, Co. Northumberland, Attorney at Law, & Mary WATSON of Embleton, Spinster. Wit. Edwd. Henderson, Sarah Fairbairn. 1779 Jan 19 James POTTS of Norham, Co. of Durham, Overseer of the Coalworks at Greenlaw Walls & Rose POTTS of the same Parish. Wit. Ja. Nisbet, Mark Proudfoot. Sep 3 Michael COULTER of Lisbury, Co. Northumberland, Farmer, & Mary COULTER of Morpeth, Spinster. Wit. Jas. Nisbet, Thomas Fairbairn. 1780 May 22 William SKELLY of Eglingham, Co. Northumberland, Farmer, & Margaret SCOTT of the same Parish. Wit. Thomas Arthur, James Fairbairn. May 25 Edward HOGGBANKS of Wolsingham, Co. Durham, Writer, & Isabella METCALFE of the same parish. Wit. George Sawers, T. Hinslie(?), Jas. Nisbet.

1783 Sep 16 William HUNTER, Lieutenant in the Durham Militia, and Sarah DODSWORTH of Rippon, Co. York. Wit. Wm Brunton, Jas Nisbet. Thomas SEMPLE of Berwick-upon-Tweed, Butcher, & Jane 1792 Jan 19 ROBERTSON of the same parish. Wit. William White, Jas. Nisbet. Miles MONKHOUSE of All Saints, Newcastle-upon-Tyne, Wine 1793 April 19 Merchant, & Dorothea Ann HOPPER of Elvet in the City of Durham, Spinster. Wit. Elizabeth Bowker, William Loftus. 1795 Nov 24 Alexander RAMSAY of Dunse, Butcher, & Frances SPEARS of Berwick-upon-Tweed. Wit. Alexr. Thom, Thomas Temple. (Note: The above entry is shown as 1795 but appears before the marriages for 1794 and may therefore be in error.)

# SO YOU THINK YOU HAVE TROUBLES

### G.T. Millican

When researching a name most people may have some variety of spellings to contend with. In the search for Millicans the variations are almost like Heinz - 57 Varieties.

М	Ι	$\mathbf{L}$	$\mathbf{L}$	Ι	С	Α	Ν	
	Е	Ν	Ν	Е	Κ	Е		Е
	U				G	0		Α
e.	Y				S	Y		

By using any permutation of the letters above the various forms of the name can be arrived at. Examples which have been found are as follows:

MILLIGAN	MILIKIN	MILLEGAN	MULLIGAN	MILLICHAN	MINNIKEN
MILIGAN	MILLICAN	MILLIKANE	MULLIKIN	MYLLIGHAN	MINIKEN
MELIGAN	MELLICAN	MULLICANE	MYLLIKIN	MILIKYNE	MINIKIN
MELEGAN	MELICAN	MULIGEN	MILLISON	MULLIKEN	MILCANA
MILLIKEN	MYLLYKYNE	MULLIGAINE	MILICAN	MINNICAN	MILLICANA
MILIKEN	MILLIGANE	MILIGNE	MILLIKAN	MINNIGAN	

It is probably because of the Anglicising of the Irish alphabet that all the varieties have developed. The following attempts at an Anglicised spelling of the originals of the name indicate something of the problem which must have troubled the people who were required to write the name on mainland records - O'MAOILEAGAIN, O'MAOILEACAIN, O'MAOILEAGAN and O'MAOLACAIN.

When I started to trace my own family some years ago I came to a dead end in Glanton, Northumberland, at the birth of the first child of George and Elizabeth (Telford) Millican which was recorded by the Presbyterian Church in Glanton in 1800. No record of the marriage of George to Elizabeth Telford has been found. It is known from the 1851 census that Elizabeth came from Scotland but the story is told in the family that George came north from Yorkshire looking for land to farm. I would be grateful if anyone can offer any help here if they know of any Millicans in Yorkshire in the 1700s.

When I found this dead end I decided to try to research other Millican families in the hope of coming up to George and Elizabeth from earlier times. So far no luck. As the list of names increased the interest in the whole history and origin of the name developed so much that there are now over a thousand names on file card and a mass of history accumulated. I am now convinced that the name Millican did not exist in this form but for one exception, Cuthbert Millican of Sebergham, who signed the Protestation Roll in 1641. Can anyone prove me wrong? All other signings of the Protestation Roll are spelt by one of the selection listed above and as generations progressed several developed into Millican.

The main English source of the name is undoubtedly Cumberland. A number of families moved East to Alston Moor where they became lead miners, during the many poor years in this form of mining they moved down the Tyne, settling in Northumber-land and Durham.

# MEMBERS AND THEIR INTERESTS

Items for inclusion in this and the Second Time Around column should be sent to Mrs Anne Spendiff, 17 Augustus Drive, Bedlington, Northumberland. Entries for the next (January) issue of the Journal should reach Mrs Spendiff by 1st November. Please include your membership number when writing.

- 531 Mrs P. FIDIAM, Tees Bank House, 337 Coniscliffe Rd, Darlington, Co. Durham. Interested in the Fidiam family anywhere at any time. Also Buntin, or Bunton, and Mowbray families of Witton Gilbert in the 18th century; the Nixon and Watchman families, Chester-le-Street, 19th century; Fowler family, Monkwearmouth, 18th century; Wood family, Durham City, 19th century.
- 587 Mr W. TOYN, "Cleeve", The Grove, Broom Lane, Whickham, Newcastle. Would like any information on the following: (1) Robert Wilson married Mary Bryden 16/5/1799 (place unknown). There were twelve daughters of the marriage, who were born in Lowick, Etal and Tweedmouth, 1801-1822. The only son, William, was born in Etal in 1813. The family was probably Presbyterian. Robert Wilson is said to have been born in Tiptoe and to have been a butcher. (2) The birth of Thomas Ternent (or Tranent), c.1789 in Northumberland, the son of Thomas Ternent and Agnes Grey. (3) Anything on Mary Elizabeth Duffy, b.16/2/1892 at Benton Park Lodge, daughter of James Duffy and Mary Ann McCreish.
- 722 Mr R.K. HARLE, 44 Sherburn Park Dr, Rowlands Gill, Tyne & Wear.
- 723 Miss L.T. BIRES, Sunset Drive, MR2, Baden, Pennsylvania 15005, USA.
- 724 Mr J.E. RUSSELL, 23 Milbank Court, Darlington, Co. Durham.
- 725 Mr D. BURN, 2 Lavan Sands, Thornhill, Acklam, Middlesbrough, Cleveland TS5 8TU.

Mr Burn would be interested in information about Walter Burn, who was probably born in the 1680s in or near the parish of Gainford, although no record of his baptism appears in the Gainford register.

- 726 Mrs E. BOYLE, 19 St. Leonards Ave, Windsor, Berkshire. Researching the name Emmerson, and seeking esp. the marriage of an Emmerson and an Appelby before 1849.
- 727 Mr S.E. CHAPMAN, 117 Thornbridge Drive, Frenchevill, Sheffield S12 4YH. Would like information on John Pattinson Chapman, whose father, Snowdon Chapman, was born c.1829. Also David Markwell, whose daughter, Mary Ann, married John Pattinson Chapman in 1852 in the Sunderland area.
- 728 Mrs A.M. McLEOD, 619 Georgian Pl, Sherwood Pk, Alberta, T8A 2T6, Canada. Seeks the marriage of Peter Burn and Margaret Joicey in the Longhorsley area, c.1759, and the birth of Hannah Watson, in Whittington in 1840. Would also like information on the following families: Joicey (Netherwitton, Longhorsley, 18th cent.); Johnson (Haltwhistle, 18th cent.); Dickinson (Haltwhistle, 18th & 19th cent.); Watson (Whittington, 19th cent.); Burn (Netherwitton, 18th & 19th cent., Longhorsley, 18th cent., Haltwhistle, 18th & 19th cent., Brampton, Cumbria, 19th cent.); Hewitson (Aspatria, Cumb., 19th cent.); Reay (Cockermouth, 18th & 19th cent.); Rutherford (London & Dublin, 19th cent.), Lloyd (London, 19th cent.).

729 Mr R. WILSON, 490 John Williamson St., S. Shields, Tyne & Wear, NE33 5HW.
730 Capt. D. ARMSTRONG, High Grow Law, Hepple, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE65 7LH.
731 Mrs K.A. RAMSDEN, Treveen, Eighton Banks, Gateshead, NE9 7XD.

- 732 Mr K. LINGE, Acca, 6 Luxmoore Ave., Willington, Co. Durham, DL15 ODY.
- 733 Dr I.R. McGILL, 57 Paynesdown Rd, Thatcham, Nr. Newbury, Berkshire.
- 734 Mr G.L. FAIRS, Thornton House, Bear St, Hay-on-Wye, Hereford, HR3 5AN. Interested in the following families between 1850 and 1918: Fairs (Gateshead), Cowrie (Branxton, Cornhill, Crookham & Lowick, Northumberland), Craggs (W. Rainton & Penshaw, Co. Durham).

735 Mrs L. CROWTHER, 32 Jubilee Dr, Thornbury, Avon, BS12 2YQ. Surnames of interest are Swinbank, Greenwell, Dunn, Brett & Young, in and around the Witton-Gilbert, Langley Park & Nettlesworth areas of Co. Durham. Richard Swinbank (19) married Ellen Brett (17) in 1877. Richard's father, also Richard, was a coal-miner and was dead by 1877. Ellen's parents were Alfred & Ann (?) Brett of Whitstable, Kent. Thomas Greenwell married Elizabeth Dunn c.1890. George Dunn (possibly a Scot) married Ann ?,c. 1850. The younger Richard Swinbank had a half brother and sister, Joseph & Margaret Young.

736 Mrs H.S. CARPENTER jr., 7927 Pine Lake Rd, Jacksonville, Florida 32216, USA.

- 737 Mr W.P. RIDLEY, 23 The Riding, Newcastle upon Tyne 3. Mr Ridley would like information on the following people: Philip Ridley, born 1792/3 in W. Allendale, and living at Grey Crags Cottage, Coanwood, in 1871; Isabella Birkett, née Ridley, born 1778/9 at Haltwhistle; her husband, Miles Birkett, who died before 1851; William Oliver, born 1792/3 at Haltwhistle and living at West Garbutt Hill, Coanwood, in 1871; his wife, Elizabeth Wallace, or Wallis, born 1796/7; James Henry Balmbra, who was living at Aycliffe in 1865 and was stationmaster at Acklington in c.1890.
- 738 Dr E. HODGSON, Dept. of Entomology, N. Carolina State University, Raleigh, N. Carolina 27650, USA.
- 739 Mr J.O.L. BRASS, Ridgeway, Windmill Lane, Ashbourne, Derbyshire, DE6 1JA. Interested in the family of William Levi Brass, who was born in Escomb, Co. Durham, and is understood to have lived at the Angel Inn, Escomb, and to have died at Esh Winning in 1915. He married Hannah Isabel Nicholson, who once lived at Boulby, N. Yorks. After Escomb, she lived at Esh Winning and died at Shildon c.1936. Other names of interest are Frith, of W. Cornforth, Nicholson & Corner. The Corners are understood to have emigrated to New Zealand.
- 740 Mrs L. VEALE, 37 Eastmont Road, Hinchley Wood, Esher, Surrey. Would like information on the Pallas family, esp. the marriage of Richard Pallas (a keelman) and Mary Boys. Two of their children, Thomas and John, were born in Sunderland in 1814 and 1818. Also, details about John Tindle would be welcome. He was the father of Matthew (born c.1829), but was dead at the time of his son's marriage to Isabella Metcalfe in 1848 at Sunderland Parish Church.
- 741 Mr C.K. ROBINSON, 111 Rothbury Rd, Newton Hall, Durham, DH1 5QB.
- 742 Mrs E.T. BROCKBANK, 8 Stonehaugh Way, Ponteland, NE20 9LX.

743 Mr A.P. PATTERSON, "Rydal", 37 Langdon Rd, Parkstone, Poole, Dorset, BH14 9EQ.

Family names are MacKenzie, Hindmarsh, Walker & Sinton. Specifically, Mr Patterson would like information on his greatgrandfather, Robin Patterson, who lived at St. Cuthbert's Inn, Monkhouses (near Bamburgh), from the 1840s to 1871. Any information about the MacKenzies and Walkers in Seahouses, Bamburgh & North Sunderland in the first half of the 19th century would be welcome.

- 744 Mr J.R. TOMBLING, 15 Oaklands Ave, St. Peters, Broadstairs, Kent. Would like to trace the birth of John Tumlin, who died 7/5/1769, and his wife, Mary, who died 28/1/1773, both at Capheaton near Kirkwhelpington. Their marriage record is also sought.
- 745 Mrs I. GUMM, 22 Heathdale Gdns, High Heaton, Newcastle, NE7 7QR.
- 746 Mrs A.N. LOVE, 37 Winston Dr, Eston, Cleveland, TS6 9LX.

747 Prof. M.R. DICKSON, 1026 Woodside Parkway, Silverspring, Md 20910, USA.
748 Mrs J.M. DODDS, Shellsborough, Woolacombe, N. Devon.

Seeking information on Edmond Dodds. A snuffbox in the family's possession is engraved as follows: "Presented by Captain Barclay of URY and the other proprietors of the Defence & Union Coaches to Mr Edmond Dodds, Road Surveyor, as a mark of respect for the very great attention bestowed by him in keeping in repair the turnpike roads under his charge - Jan. 1838." Dodds is described on his son's marriage certificate (1842) as a farmer. The son, Patrick Anderson Dodds, was married in Lichfield, but lived in N. Shields in 1834 and in Hartlepool in 1846. He died in 1868.

- 749 Mr J.D. GORDON, Albion Cottage, Albion Terr, Bishop Auckland, DL14 6EL.
- 750 Mrs E.A. SMITH, 24 Vista Encanta, San Clemente, California 92672, USA. Researching Jane Barrowforth and her sister, Ann, born 1796 & 1790 respectively in Lumly, Durham. They were living at 16 Northampton Place, Southwark, Surrey, in 1851. Jane married Daniel Roberts, a Master Tanner, who was born in Battersea in 1798. There are said to be quite a few Barrowforths in the parish of Houghton, Durham, but all are from Biddick, not Lumley. Also interested in Charles Newby & W.S. Rowe, who married into the Barrowforths when they lived in Durham.
- 751 Miss M.A. CLENNETT, 54 Berkeley Close, Ruislip Gardens, Mdsx. Miss Clennett would welcome any information on the Clennet(t)s in the 18th century or earlier.
- 752 Mrs M. METHERELL, 18 Court Rd, Ickenham, Uxbridge, Mdsx. UB10 8TE. Researching Joseph Ritchie (b.1814, N.E. Durham) and his wife, Ann Stafford (b.1816, N. Gosforth). Also Timothy McSherry (b.1828, Ireland) and his wife, Ann Henry (b.1831, Ireland). The Irish birthplaces are proving elusive. Their son, Timothy, married Mary Cain, daughter of Bridget and Bernard Cain, and all these families lived in Bedlington. After Timothy Sr.'s death (1864, aged 36), Ann married a Patrick Gillooly or Gillhooly in 1867.

# SECOND TIME AROUND

- Miss J.V. LISLE, 15 Edwin Ave South, Forest Hall, Newcastle, NE12 9AX. Interested in a Roman Catholic family called Abdon. Anthony Abdon, a zinc smelter from Belgium, was at Felling Shore, Heworth, in 1861. His wife, Elizabeth Farren (Farrell or Varell) was born in Middlesex in 1826. Their family consisted of Henry (b.1845, Wales), Mary C. (b.1846, Mülheim, Ruhr), Arthur A. (b.1851, Farlam, Cumberland), Anthony (b.1855, Jarrow), Mary Ann (b.1859, Brampton), Rosanna (b.1862 and baptised at St. Patrick's R.C. Church, Felling). Miss Lisle would like to trace Rosanna's marriage to Thomas Michael Taylor (sometimes referred to as Taylor-Bone or Bone-Taylor).
  466 Miss J.L. BROOKS, Portis, Kansas 67474, USA.
- Interested in Thomas Allan, who left England for the USA c.1851, aged c.25; his wife, Mary Jane Burnell; and his brothers, Robert & Samuel Allan. Also seeking details on John Allan (1819-1867), who died and is buried in Durham. Other family lines from England are Joseph Gledhill and William Leigh.
- 598 Mr B. ROBSON, 11 Fulthorpe Ave, Mowden Estate, Darlington, Co. Durham. Researching Peaps (Wallsend, 1829), Lockey (Alnwick), Addison (Thursby), Hindhaugh & Weir (Northumberland), Hall (Newcastle 1812+) & Jewson (Newcastle 1838+).
- 654 Mrs J. WILLCOCK, 131 14th Ave, Tauranga, New Zealand.

The earliest information on the Willcocks is the marriage of Henry to Mary Featherstone, 12/7/1877, at Darlington Register Office. Their fathers were Henry Willcock, a platelayer, and Robert Featherstone, pitman. Both were dead in 1877. Henry jr.'s son was Robert Henry, born 12/3/1888 at Darlington, and there was probably a daughter, Lilian. Other families are White (Workington, Jarrow), Nicholson (Whitehaven, Wrexham, Workington), Tallentire (Cumberland), Thornham, Everson, Barker, Chester, Roantree, Cordukes (all Yorks.), Jenner (Edenbridge, Kent), Hicklin (Notts. area), Darcy, Culshaw, Brierly, Grimshaw, Kirby, Porter, Johnson (all Lancs.), Darcy, Grimshaw (Cheshire), Beckett, Friend, Aylward, Humphrey (all Kent with possible Surrey and Sussex connections).

- 682 Mr R. ATKINSON, 29611 Pierre Drive, Novi, Michigan 48050, USA. Seeking information on Robert Atkinson of Bradley Hall, Wolsingham. His wife was Mary and his father Thomas or Robert. Robert & Mary had 8 children at Bradley Hall, 1775-94, including Thomas, b. 1 Dec. 1790, who married Sarah, ?née Bell, (b. c.1793 in Marwood or Barnard Castle), and whose son, Robert, was born in Marwood or Barnard Castle c.1819. Mr Atkinson would like a list of deaths, 1812-1837, from Wolsingham. He is also interested in the Black Horse Inn, Willington, Co. Durham, which was once owned by William Friend, who married Jane, dau. of Thomas Atkinson of 25 High Farm, Willington. Do High Farms and Farms Low still exist? Other interests are in Metcalfe and Olley. Jane, dau. of Ann & Matthew Metcalfe (a mason) of Willington, married Robert Atkinson, Sr., at Brancepeth, 25 Nov. Mary Ann Olley, b.1862, married Robert Atkinson, Jr. of 1854. Willington at Durham Registry Office, 2/1/1883; they lived at Brancepeth Castle, where they worked for Lord Boyne, and their children were born at Langley Moor and Brancepeth.
- 711 Mr T.W. ARKLE, 6 Mostyn Close, Sutton, Ely, Cambs. CB6 2QJ. The wrong entry was put with Mr Arkle's name in the last issue of the Journal. He is interested in the family name of Arkle, esp. in Northumberland.
- 715 Mr E.K. GREEN, Selworthy, 8 Shiphay Ave, Torquay, Devon, TQ2 7EA. Seeking information on John Green of Darlington c.1800, who married a Miss Feetham, a descendant of Dame Feetham of Town Farm, Sadberge, who died c.1842, aged 100. Any details regarding the Feethams and their connection with Darlington, Haughton le Skerne and Sadberge, would be welcome.
- 718 Miss V. KEMP, 383 Lode Lane, Solihull, W. Midlands. Researching the names Milbourne and Manners, and would like information on William Milbourne, who married Elizabeth Manners in 1870 in Newcastle. William and his father, also William, were plumbers. Elizabeth was from Bishop Auckland; her father, James Lindsley Manners, was born in 1805 and was a farmer.
- 720 Mrs H. ALLINSON, 125 Westerham Road, Sittingbourne, Kent. Mrs Allinson is interested in the Allinson, Redfearn, Shield, Scott, Walton, Collins & Calvert families in Teesdale, not Teeside, as stated in the last issue of the Journal.

# CHANGES OF ADDRESS

Mr D.G. HARRIS, 6 New England Close, Bicknacre, Nr. Chelmsford, Essex.
Mr A. PHILLIPS, 534 Eastern Ave, Gants Hill, Ilford, Essex, IG2 6EJ.
Mrs B. KERN, RR1 Box 46, Calby, Ks 67701, USA.
Mr P.J. CRAGGS, County Hotel, Birmingham Rd, Walsall, W. Midlands, WS1 2NG.
Mrs H.Y. McLEAN, 36 Hampton Ter, Tauranga, New Zealand.
Mr D.M. SQUIRE, 2 St. Stephen's Ave, Ealing, London, W13 8ES.

# CALLING ARIZONA

Do we have any Arizona, USA, member, who knows, or can contact, Mrs Nila Bake of Prescott? Mrs Bake wishes to join the Society; we know this because she has written to say so, but we cannot reply as she did not send us her address. The postmark on her letter is Prescott, Arizona (zip code 86301).

#### HELP WANTED

Mr R. Cail, 3 Grangewood, Wexham, Slough, SL3 6LP, who is vice-chairman of Windsor and Slough FHS, would like to contact anyone who can search for him in DURHAM County Record Office in return for reciprocal help in BUCKINGHAMSHIRE and/or BERKSHIRE County Record Offices.

#### QUIZ ANSWERS

How have you scored in the Quiz given above on pp. 3-5? Here are the answers. la. Parish Registers began. 1b. Printed Parish Registers - "Roses' Act". 1c. Hardwicke's Act - Marriage Registers improved. ld. Bishops' Transcripts started. le. Beginning of the Commonwealth - Cromwell. Many parish registers not kept. lf. Probate Courts transferred from Church to State control. 2a. Guildhall Library, London. 2b. Borthwick Institute, York. 2c. Prior's Kitchen, Durham. 2d. New Register House, Edinburgh. 2e. Society of Genealogists, London. 2f. Public Record Office, London. 3a. Somerset House. 3b. Inventory. Probate Bond. 3c. Arrange for an Administration. 3d. Children - when both parents had died and guardians had to be arranged. 3e. A small area, e.g. parish or manor, where probate was granted by a local official and not by the archdeacon or bishop. 3f. Some - as long as they were not married! Single women only, until 1882. 4b. St. Nicholas, St. John, St. Andrew, All Saints. 4a. 4. 4d. Cathedral, St. Giles, St. Margaret, St. Mary the Less, St. 4c. 7. Mary-le-Bow, St. Nicholas, St. Oswald. 4e. Ovingham, Longbenton, Elsdon. 4f. Trevelyan: Wallington, Hartburn parish or Netherwitton; Tankerville: Chillingham. 4g. Chester-le-Street, Staindrop, Brancepeth. 4h. Neville: Raby or Barnard Castle; Tempest: Durham City, Shincliffe, Bradley, Wolsingham, Holmside, Stanley, Stella, etc. 4i. Kirknewton. 4j. Norton. 4k. York. 41. Craike in Yorkshire; Over Dinsdale and Girsby, Yorks.; Alston, Cumberland. 4m. (i) Glass; (ii) Iron; (iii) Lead; (iv) Salt. 5a. Made 'corves' (baskets for carrying coals). 5b. A colliery overseer. 5c. A shoemaker, worker in leather. 5d. Cleans and thickens cloth - hence "fuller's earth". 5e. Originally received strangers who came to buy coal in Newcastle - later controlled the selling of coal. 5f. Worked in a shot-tower. 5g. Operated sedan chairs. 5h. A blacksmith's unskilled assistant; or, a steam hammer operator; or, in mines, forced down the coal with wedges. 6a. Worked at a lathe. 6b. Cowherd. 6c. Made coins. 6d. Weaver. 6e. Made bread from wheat. 6f. Made arrows. 6g. Bailiff. 6h. Beadle. 6i. Story-teller! 6j. Knife-maker. 7c. St. Catherine's House. 7a. 16. 7b. 60. 7d. Birth/marriage/death records of army personnel. 7e. Many Catholic registers moved around the country; in fact, this register contains entries for many places, but there is not one Worcester record. 7f. Great-uncle. 7g. First cousin, once removed. 7i. 1801. 7h. 1662. 7j. Durham St. Oswald.

8a. (i) Design mounted on the helmet; (ii) Diagonal stripe across the shield.
8b. (i) Gold; (ii) Red; (iii) Silver; (iv) Black.
8c. Arms that give a pun on the person's name.
8d. An addition to arms to show a junior branch, or a son of the main family.

### LETTER TO THE EDITOR

Dear Sir,

On reading the article, "Eight Great-Grandparents", by the late Miss Dodds, in the July 1979 Journal, "The Mawsons of Lowther" sounded familiar. I checked my records to find that the Will of my second cousin four times removed (great-great-grandfather's second cousin), John Mounsey of Askham, Westmorland, dated September 1860, begins as follows:

... First I nominate and appoint my Brother in law James Mawson of Lowther in the County of Westmorland aforesaid Builder and ... Joint Executors ....

It names his sister Hannah, the wife of James Mawson, and his nephews and niece, John Mounsey Mawson, Joseph Mawson and Matilda Mawson.

I presume that this James Mawson was the brother of John Mawson, Miss Dodds' grandfather, the mentioned second son of Joseph and Lydia Mawson.

Yours sincerely,

P.M. Brough (member no. 13)

#### A STRAY MARRIAGE

From Charlton (by Greenwich):

Henry FORSTER gent. of Clendon in the county of Durham and Anne WALL of the parish of St. Mary, Rotherith (sic) in Surrey widow were married November ye 15<sup>th</sup> 1731 with License from his Grace the Ld. Archbishop of Canterbury.

#### FUTURE PROGRAMME

Wednesday, October 10
 "Any Questions?", with a panel of experts including a member of staff
from Tyne & Wear County Record Office.
 YMCA Building, Ellison Place, Newcastle, 7.15 p.m.

Thursday, November 15

"Mining History and Records" YMCA Building, Ellison Place, Newcastle, 7.15 p.m.

Friday, December 7

Northumbrian Evening, with traditional food and entertainment - piper, dancers, etc., at Five Bridges Hotel, Gateshead. Tickets, £4, available from Adam Bunting (see enclosed slip).

Thursday, January 17 Indexing Workshop. YMCA Building, Ellison Place, Newcastle, 7.15 p.m.

Wednesday, February 13

Talk on Palaeography (understanding old handwriting). YMCA Building, Ellison Place, Newcastle, 7.15 p.m.

#### INDEX TO VOLUME 4

Mr D.G. Linley has again kindly undertaken the indexing of the Journal and this index follows the same lines as that published last year apart from one change made in order to save space: in the genealogical name index, instead of listing all the page references to a surname followed by references to specific Christian names, we have only given a general page reference for a surname where there is no subsequent reference to a particular Christian name on that page.

The page numbers refer to Volume 4: pp. 1-30 are in No. 1, pp. 31-60 in No. 2, pp. 61-90 in No. 3 and pp. 91-120 in No. 4. Please note that a name may occur several times on one page.

The place index lists all place names mentioned in volume 4 except members' addresses and "modern" places such as record offices, etc. It is arranged by counties, with Durham and Northumberland first, followed by other English counties, Scottish counties, Irish counties, Jersey, and finally the rest of the world, with each section in alphabetical order. Hamlets, farms, etc., appear under their parish or nearest village.

The index to articles, etc., lists articles under their heading in quotation marks and under their topic.

### GENEALOGICAL NAME INDEX

ADAMS	John 58	DATECON	60 $94$ , Wolton 70
ADAMS	111	BATE(S) BATTISBY	69,84; Walter 70 Jane 5
AGAR			• • • • • •
	113	BAT(T)Y	Arthur 112; Eliz Reb
A(I)TCHISON	•		86; Thos 112
ALCOCK	S.T. 108	BEATTIE	Jas 3
ALDERSON	Mgt 104; Robt 70,104	BEILBY	41; Ralph 42
ALLAN/ALLEN		BELL	Eliz 114; Esther 114;
	ISON/ 87; Eliz 114; Emily		John 114; Robt 114;
ALLASON	59; John 114; Mary Anne 59		Robt Geo 114
ANDERSON	Eliz 72	BEWICK	40-42; John 42; Thos
ANGRAVE	Geo Thos 85		40,42
ANTRIM	John 70,104	BINNS	Geo 117
ARAM	Mathias 3	BIRD	John 70
ARMSTRONG	3,4; John 9; Marianne 114;	BLACKETT	69; Ralph 5; Stephen
	Mary 114; Robt 9		5
ARNOT	Isab 55	BLADES	Mary 85
ASHCROFT	Jas 70,104	BLAIR	113
ATKIN	Peter 70; Wm 70,104	BLAKE	Jas 3
ATKINSON	Jane 72; John 3; Robt 112;	BLENKINSOP	69,115; Barb 73;
	Wm 6		Thos 73; Wm 73
ATTEY	John 111	BLOCK	Edw L. 51
AYRE	Hannah 57	BOHILLS	113
BABER	9	BOLCKOW	102
BACON	Chas Edw 85; Geo 68,85;	BOOTH	Geo 117
	John 68,69,85; Mary 85;	BOVILLE	John 102; Mary 102
	Rich 85; Wm 68	BOWDEN	Kath 64
BAILES	Eliz 73	BOWES	108
BAILEY	Jas 5; Jos 5; Mary 5	BOWMER/BOUMER	Eleanor 59; John 59
BALLINGHALL	Geo 46	BRADLEY	Thos 86
BALMER	Mary 72	BRADY	Han 104; Thos 70,104
BARCLAY	70	BRAIK	Mary 112
BARKER	86; Robt 70	BRASS	Wm 73
BARNES	5; Jane 113	BREWIS	Eliz 96
BARRON (S)	Nich 73; Wm 3,70,104	BRIGGS	Jane 111
BARTLEY	112	BRITTAIN	Wm 113
<b></b>			·····

W. 106 BROGDALE BROOK(E)S Thos 70 BROTHERTON Hy 70,104 BROUGH Thos 58 BROWN(E) 56,111; Alex 118; Eliza 118; Mary 72; Mary Ann 58; Matt 87; John Thos 74; Tamar 59; Wm 2,3 BRUCE Wm 70,104 BRUMWELL 56 BRUNNING Isab 72,109; Jonathan 109 BRYHAM Lydia 94,98 BUNGAY 111 BURDES Wm 117 BURDON Wm Wharton 83 BURKE Bernard 66; H. Farnham 66 Dor 73; Mary 74; Robt BURLE(Y)SON/ BURLETSON 73,74 BURLISTON 56 BURN 84; Eliz B. 72 BURNELL Mary Jane 59 BURRELL Edw 2 CAIN John 70,104 Abel 113 CALDERWOOD CALVERT 114 CAMERON Isab 94,100,101; Robt 100; Thos 107 CAMPBELL Wm 70 CANDLISH John 118 CARLETON Robt 70,104 CARMAN Eliz 72 CARNABY Eliz 7 CARPENTER Powell 3 56; Alex 44; Alex Allan CARR 44,45,46; Ann 44,45; Han 44; Jane 44,45; John 44; Mgt Comrie 44; Mary 44; Robt 44,45; Robt Dumble 44; Walter Calvert 44; Wm Graham 44,46 CARSE Jas 58; Thos 58 CASH Thos 70,105 CATCHESIDE 84; Matt 83 CAVE Hy Arthur 118 CAWARD Geo 3 CHAPMAN 3 CHARLTON 55; Jas 58; John 3; Thos 3.58 Wm 69 CHAYTOR CHESTER 86 CHISHOLM Jas 57 Wm 117 CHRISHOP CHRISTIE ₩m 70 CLAIG Jane 72 113; John 70,105; Robt CLARK(E) 70,105 CLERVAUX Wm 69 de CLOE Bowen 70 CLOSE Cuth 74

COATES 60,115; Edw 59; Jane Mary 74; John 70; Jos 59; Mary Donnison 74; Thos 59; Wm 105 Maria McQueen 49; COCHRANE Wm 49 COCKBURN Geo 70 Bridget 88; Mary Ann COLE 72; Thos 117 COLLEGE Teasdal(e) 70,105 COLLIN(G)(S) 109,114; Jos 70,105 Wm 79 COLLINGWOOD . COLT 3 COMMON Wm 66 COOK(E) 85; Eliz 117; Jas 60; John 111; Mary Christie 117; Robt 66,112; Mgt 50; Wm 117 COOKSON Emma 104 COOPER Dennis 70; Eliz 111; Eliz Smith 111; Thos Smith 111 Rich 73 CORBAN CORBET(T) 86 COSSER Jas 55 COTT 111 COULSON 69; Ann 56; Jane 60 COULTER Wm 37 COWDEN/COLDON Kath 64 COWELL 115 CRAGG(S)/ Eleanor 55; Geo 55; CRAIG(S) Jane 109; John 55 CRANSTON Nich 70 CRASTER/de CRASTER Barb 64; Wm 65 CRATCHETT Bob 97 CROMARTY Jane 85; Mgt Ann 85; Thos 85 Barb 38,39; Eliz 86; CROOK(S) Robt 86; Robt Wm 86 Jas 43; Jane 43; CROSBY Martha 43; Wm 43 CROSIER 2; Adam 3; Geo 3; Robt 3 Brass 74 CROSLEY 55 CROWE CROWLEY 6 Ellen 72 CUMMIN(G)S Chris 70,105 CURRAH CURRY 9,11 CURTIS Jas 70 **CUTHBERTSON** 57 Ann 115; Jane 79; DA(L)GLI(E)SH John 115; Robt 115 DALKIN Wm 74 DARNTON 56 DAVIS John 70,105; Rachel 52 DAVI (D) SON 113; Anne 6,7; Cuth 103,109; Mary Ann 72, 103,109; Ralph 7;

	Dabt 7. Dabt 6 7.	FORREST	Robt 112
	Robt 7; Robt S. 7;	FO(R)STER	68; Ann 107; Chas
DET ANY	Wm 4,67,71	FO(R)SIER	109; Geo 86; Han
DELANY DETHICK	John 71,105 Gilbert 66		85; Thos 59,69;
DICKENS	97		Wm 69
	/Agnes 63; Ann 79; Eliz	FOWELL	Thos 51
		FOWLE	Benj 3; Dan 3
DICKI(N) SON/	Judith 52; Mary 79;	FRASER	Alex 63,64
DĮCKE(N) SON	Phillis 114; Robt 43	FREEMAN	John 71
DIGBY	Eliza Ann 56; Matt 56	FRIAR	Thos 71
DINNING(S)	110; Rog 71; Rosanna 72		HER Peter 71,105
DINSDALE	Mgt 58	GALL	111
DITCHBURN	Wm 71,105	GALLOWAY	Dav 114; Mgt 114
DOBSON	Jemimna 9	GARBUTT	Azchariah 3
DOD(D)S	72; Christian 95; Edwin		R Fanny 85; Francis
	94; Eleanor 96; John	, <b>.</b>	85; Geo 85; John 85;
	94,95,96; Matt 95,96,98;		Ralph 85; Thos 85
	Matt S. 94; Ella 34	GARNETT	Robt 71; Wm 71,105
DONNISON	Robt 74	GARRET	Robt 105
DONOVAN	47	GEOGHEGAN	47
DOUGLAS(S)	Adam 36; John 56	GIBB	113
DOWNING	Wm 6,7	GIBSON	4,6; Agnes 87; Isaac
DRURY	Robt 105		80; John 80; Mgt 80;
DRYDEN	Eliz 5		Mary 80; Wm 71
DUNBAR	Jas 71; Sarah 70	GILHESPY	Isab 41; John 41
EADINGTON	9	GINNET	105; Jas 71
EASINGTON	69	GLEDSTONE	59
EGGLESTON	Jane 117	GLEN	113
ELLERSON	85	GOULD	90; Zilpher 111
EL(L)IOT(T)	Geo 45,111; Jos 113,115;	GRAHAM	44,113; Bridget 115;
	Mgt 115; Ralph 115;		Dav 37; Jas 71
	Robt 113; Thos 115	GRANT	60; Patrick 106; Wm
ELLISON	Anne 58; Nath 58		71,105,106
EMBLETON	Han 111; Mary 58; Robt	GRAY/GREY	Abraham 111; Eliz
	111		65; Geo 3; Rich 87;
EMERY	Ellen 70		Mary 111; Thos 86
ENGLISH	Hy 59,60; Jacob 59;	GREATREX	Robt 71,106
	Sarah 59	GREEN	Ann 70,82; Edw 70;
ERRINGTON	Martha Isab 111; Thos		Ellen 70; Emma 70;
	78		Fred 70,82; John 82,
EVANS/EWENS	Geo 111; John 71,105;		113; Jos 71,106;
	S. 111		Mary 82; Rose 70;
EVERSON	86	CORDINELL	Wm 70,82
EWBANK	55	GREENWELL	Geo 50,51,52;
FAIRBRIDGE	Eliz 57,76	CD LOE	Mary Ann 50,51
FARMER	Geo 71,105	GRICE	90 W- 71
FARQUARSON	H.B. 41	GRIEVES	Wm 71
FARROW	Mgt 73	GRIFFIN	John 71,106 Thos 3
FEATHERSTONE	<b>8</b> 6	GRISWOLD HABBARD	
FEATHERSTONHA		HADLEY	Fenwick H. 71 John 3
FEETHAM	113	HALES/HAILS	Rich 57; Robt 57;
FELL	Mary 8	IIADED/ IIATED	Wm 57
FENWICK	69; Hy 58; John 58;	HALL	37, 111; Dor 87;
DIQUES	Thos 71	********	Edw 3; Eliz 117; Han
FISHER	John 71,105		50,51; Jas 87; John
FLAHERTY	Jas 108 Floamer 111: Frances		3,50,51,52; Thos 117;
FLEMING	Eleanor 111; Frances		Wm 87
FORDVOF	Jane 111; Wm 111 43; Thos 105	HALLGARTH	Hy 71
FORDYCE FOREMAN	43; 1105 105 Eliz 118; Jos 118; Mgt	HAMILTON	112; Jas 57; Walter
	55; Mary 118; Wm 118		57; Wm 55
	se, mary rro, nm rro		• -

HANCOCK 42 Jas 71 HORN Mgt 56 HOTTLESTON HANDFORD Fred B. 71; Fred Burley 106 HOULT Hy 112 HANDISIDE HOW(E) 106,113; Jas 71 Mary 112 87; Eliz 104 HANLEY Wm 3 HOWEY/HOWIE Lucy 56 HANN John 71; Thos 71 HOWLETT John 71,106 HARBURN Rich Hind 112 HOWLEY John 111; Stephen 111 HARDY Eliz 106: Wm 71 HUBBOCK John 71,106 HARLE Dinah 59 HUDDLESTONE 111 HARPER HUDSPITH Edw 71,106 HARRISON 7,113; Geo 80; John 71, HUGGETT John 71 HUMPHREY 55 105.106 HARSON HUNT 112 56 8; Abraham 42; Agatha HART Geo 106 HUNTER HARTLEY Jane 85 111; Anne 59; John Geo 111; Jos 87; Mgt 111; HARVEY Thos 71 Mary 87; Mollie 111; HAUGHAN 111 Mich 59; Rachel Jackson HAWKES Emily 118; Mervyn Lanark 118; Sidney Milnes 118 111; Sally 111 HUTCHINSON Hugh 71; John 117; Mgt Han 43; John 43 HAY 73; Robt 74; Wm 73,74 HAYDON Harriet 56; Mary 56 HUTTON Geo 70; T.G. 8 HEATH 8 ICETON 112 HECKHERTY Jas 71 Ann 72,109 HEDLEY 41; Mgt 85 JAAG Ant 9,86 111; John 73,74; Rich JACKSON HEDWORTH 74; Robt 73,74 HEERON Patrick 71 Sam 57; Sarah 57 JACOBS HEMY Chris 111 56; Robt S. 71; Robt Eliz 52 HENDERSON JACQUES Shorter 106 JAMES Robt 71,106 Wm 71 Dan 71; Pet 71,106 JAM(E)SON HENRY Helen 118; Jas 118 HENZELL Isaac 111: Nancy 111 JARDINE Frank Lucas 63 HERDMAN Hy 113; Mgt 59; Walter JARRETT **JEFFERSON** Jas 71 113; Wm 113 HESLOP John 71 JEFFS Eliza 86 JOBEY Benj 86 HEWARD 86 JOBLING John 84 HEWITT Edw 71 46; Agnes 70; Ant 56; JOHNSON HEW(IE)SON Stewart 71,106 Edw 6; Geo 71; John 42, HICKSON Frances 70 56,71,106; Mary Ann 72; HILL Geo 71 Robt 42 HILTON Chas 88; Thos 88 JOICEY 115 HINDERWELL 5 John Paul 37; Wm 71 JONES HODGSON Cuth 118; Cuth Styles Wm 9 JOYCE 118; Eliz 43; Han 43; Hugh 56; Jas 8; Jane 43, KEAN John 71,107 **KEEDY** Jas 71,107 56; Jas Jon Miller 118; **KELDEY** Peter 107 John 43; Jennie 118; Jasper 56 Isab 43; Mgt 56; Martha KELL **KENNEDY** Patrick 107; Thos 71, 43; Ralph 56; Rich 43; Wm 43; Wm Allen 118 107 KIDD Jane 78,80; John 80 HOLMES 113; Adam 79; Ann 78,79, **KILBURN** Eliz 115 80; Eliz 78,80,87; Ellen 72,110; Esther 78,79; KILDAY Peter 71 KING Mary 112; Mich 112 Frances 79; Jas 78; Jane 78,79,80; John 79; Jon KINMOND 56 78; Mgt 78,79,80; Mary KIPLING Robt 86 Rich 71,107 KIRK 78,79,80; Rachel 78; Wm 71 KITCHEN Rich 78,79,80; Sarah 78, KNIBB Mary 75 79; Thos 78,79,80; KNOTT Leadbitter 55; Matt Walton 80; Wm 78,79,80 55,87 HOLT Wm 71 Geo 45 KNOX HOOPER 111; John 71

LAIDLER	58	MASON	Barb 38,39; Geo 39;
LAMB	Brodley 84; Eliz 83,84;		John 64; Marion 63,
	Han 83; Hy 83; Isab 83;		64; Pris 38; Wm 38
	Jas 83; Jas B. 83; Jane	MATHER	Wm 71
	35,83,84; John 83,84;	MATTHEWS	Thos 71
	Luke 83,84; Mark 83;	MAUDLING	Jos 71
	Mary 83; Matt 83; Mgt	MAULE	Isab Grace 84; Wm 84
	83; Robt 83; Wm 83	MAWSON	Emily Bryham 94;
LAMPH	John 57; Wm 57		John 43,94,99,101;
LANGERMAN	Joe 51	· .	Jos 94,98,99; Lydia
			99
LANSBURG	John 71	MANDO	
LAVERICK	John 9; Thos 71	MAYER	Ann 111
LAVIN	John 71,107	McDONALD	Angus 111; Thos 71,
LAWS	Eliz 40; John 40-43,71;		107
	Jon 40; Ralph 40	McGOUGH	Mary Ann 72,110;
LAWSON	Barb 64; Susan 86		Patrick 71,106,107
LEATHEM	Ellen 58	McGREGOR	Agnes 58
LEAVISS	Frances 58	McINTOSH	Christina 55; Con-
LEE	Smithson 113		stance 55; Dav 55;
LEGGE	113		Dav Jas 55; John 55;
LEIGHTON	Jane 117; John 117;		Wm 55
	Wm Walker 117	MCINTYRE	113
LENNIE	Marion 63	MCKAY	Mgt 114
LENNON	Ellen 57; Wm 107	MCKENNA	Patrick 71,107
	-		John 71,107
LEYBOURN(E)	105; Han 72	MCKIE	•
LIDSTER	Mich 56	McLAUGHL IN	Edw 71,107
LIGHTLY	Anne 86; Ant 86; Geo	McQUEEN	Ann 110; Marion 49
	Edwin 86; Jas 86	•	LLAR Patrick 71,107
LINDSAY	Clarence S. 118; Jas	McQUIRE	Bridget 72; Ellen 72
	118	McWHINNIE	Mary 87
LINDSLEY	113	McWHIRTER	Eliz 86
LITTLE	Jas 78	MESSENGER	Janet 72,110; Robt 69
LITTLEHAILS	John 71,107	METCALFE	111
LLOYD	Wm 71,107	MIDDLEMAN	Isab 57
LOCKE	Geo 5	MIDDLETON	Mgt 115; Wm 115
LOCKEY	112	MILBOURNE	113
LODGE	Rachel 111	MILLER	77; Ann 55,87; Cyril
	John 71,107,110; Mary		Gibson Risch 75;
LOGAN			Dawson Risch 75;
	72,107,110		-
LONRON	84		Edith Hasler 76;
LONGSTAFF	Jos 108		Harry Hasler 76;
LOWE	Geo 71		Harry Risch 76; Hy
LOWRY	Thos 3		57,75,76; Han 44;
LOWTHER	99; Jas 98; Rich 69		John 44; Thos Dawson
LUKE	John 107		76; Thos Robson 75,76
LUMLEY	113	MILLICAN/MILLIC	GAN Edw 110; Geo 114;
MABON	John 71		Pet 110; Robt 114
MADDON	Alex 71,107	MINTO	Earl of 45
MAGUIRE	113	MITCHELL	Mary 72,110; Matt
MAIN	9		71,107; Sam 71;
MALLETT	Geo 71		Thos 79
	113	MITFORD	65
MANNERS			
MARLEY	Eliz 87,89; John 87;	MOFFAT	Ann 72
	Jos 89; Rich 87,89;	MOHAN	John 107
	Wm 89	MOODY	Benj 3; Jas 71
MARLOW	Abraham 71,107	MOOR (E)	Geo 114; Jos 114;
MARSHALL	69; Ann 35; Dav 83;		Phillis 114; Thos 114
	Isab 83	MORGAN	Chris 117
MARTIN	Dav 42; Hy 59; Matt	MORLIDGE	Sam 59
	71,107; M. 106; Philip	MORRAS	Han 52; Jane 51,52;
	71,107; P. 106		Mary Ann 50,52; Wm
MARWOOD	John 110; Mary Ann 110		50,51,52
	com ito, mary and ito		

• .

.

MORTON	Jas 71	RAW	34
MOSES	Ann 107	RAWLINSON	Eliz 59; Geo 59
MOSS	Rachel 90	REAVELY	And 111; Cuth 111;
MOULD	Cath 9; Ellen 86		Susannah 111
MUIR	Jane 112; Mary 114	REAY/REAH	Ann 9; Phebe 38
MURPHY	Tim 47	REDFEARN	114
MUSGRAVE	65	REDMAN	John 74
NATTRASS	Elinor 78	REED/READ/REID	3,55,86
NESBIT	Isab 88; John 56,88;	RENWICK	John 3
	Wm 88	RICHARDSON	Ann 117; Barb 39; John
NEVILL(E)	Jane 59; John 59		37,39,72,108; Geo 117;
NEWCOMB (E)	John 56; Robt 115		Mgt 73,110; Thos 117
NEWHAM	Ann 58	RICKERBY	Jos 85
NICHOLSON	86; Alf 112; Eliza	RIDDELL	87
	112; Eliz 112; John	RIDLEY	69; Ann 113,114; Barb
	Alf 112; Maria 112;		114; Matt White 42;
	Mary 112		Robt 66; Sarah 56;
NORTHUMBERLAND	Duke of 34,37		Young 114
OATES	John 71; Thos 71	RILEY	Jas 72; John 72,108
<b>O'BRIEN</b>	Ellen 72; Mary 72	RISBY	Han 111
OGLE/de HOGGELI	Isab 65; Umfrid 65	RISCHMILLER/	Caroline 75; Heinrich
OLIPHANT	Rich 66	RISCHMULLER	Johan 77; Hy/Harry 75;
ORD(E)	69; And 5; Ann Dob-		Fred/Friedrich 57,75,
	son 58; Emily Jane		76,77; Fred Wm/Fried-
	43,44; Isab 43; Jac		rich Wilhelm 57,75;
	43; Jane 5; Mary 59;		Marie Louise 77; Mary
	Sarah 5; Sarah Isab		75; Ralph 77
	43,44; Thos 5,71;	RITSON	Jos 9
	Wm 43,44	ROANTREE	86
ORWIN	John 9	ROBERTSON	56,108; Dav 72; Marj
OSBORNE	113		46; Wm 72,103
OSWALD	Dor Jane 110; Peter	ROBINSON	Eleanor 63,64; Geo 72;
<b>.</b>	Robson 110		Isab 56,88; John 64;
OXTOBY	Hy 3; Robt 3		Mgt Jane 73; Thos 55;
PAGE	Corbet 86		Walter M. 72; Walter
PAT(T)ERSON	Geo 71,103,107; Mgt		Matthewson 108; Wm 55,
DAVMON	73		72,103,108; Wm A. 72;
PAXTON	Constance 55	DODGON	Wm Alfred 108
PEARSON	Alice 74; Ann 74;	ROBSON	2,33,56; Agnes 73; And
	Brian 73; Dor 73;		3,34,35,36; Ann 35,36,
	Jarrad 73; John 73,		76; Gowen 3; Jack 3;
PEART	74; Robt 73,74		Jas 3; Jane 36; Janet
PEGG	9; Mary 80 Eliz 117		36,37; John 3; Jos 3;
PENTNEY			Mark 36; Matt 3; Robt
PERCY	Emma 104		3; Sarah 57,76; Thos 3,
PERRY	Benj 67; Eliz 67;	RODENBY/RODDENB	35,36,37,72,76; Wm 40
	Jos 67; Rachel 67;	RATTENBURY	John Matt 5; Matt 5;
	Wm Todd 67		Robt 5
PLACE	113	ROGAN	Thos 72
PORRITT	112	ROGERS	Eliz 73,110; Isab 43
POSKETT	Chas 71,106,108	RO(A)PER	Annas 74; Brian 74;
POTTS	84,113; Dor 83		Eliz 74; Henrietta 74;
PRATT	Thos 43,72,108		Robt 74; Roper Stote-
PRESTON	Robt 118		Donnison 74
PRINGLE	Craster 58; Geo 72,	ROSS	87
	108	ROUND	J.H. 66
PYBUS	33; Ann 34,35	ROWLINGS	Ann 86
RACE	87	RUDCHESTER	65
RADCLIFFE	69	RUSSELL	Geo 72; Helen 118
RAMSAY/RAMSEY	Eliz 55	RUTHERFORD	Geo 72

STAWPARD/STAWPART Mary 5 RUTTER Hy 9 John 72,108 85 STEELE RYAN RYCROFT 87 STEPHENSON/ Christian 94,95; Anne 74; Jane 74; STEVENSON Eliz 83; Geo 57,76; SADLER Harold 50; J.D. 105; Robt 74 SALKELD Rowland 78; Wm 5 Cath 73 STEWART/STUART Jane 111; John 109; 34; Corbet 86; SA(U)NDERSON Page 86; Wm 72 Wm 57 STILES Emily 118; Jennie SASSENBERGS Marie Louise 77 SCAIFE Jos 72,108 118; J.J. 118 STILWELL 45 SCAMBLER/SKAMLER/SCRAMBLER/ STOBBART John 74; Matt 74 SCAMBLEY Eliz 85; Jas 85; John 85; Mgt 85; Rich 85 STOCKBURN Rich 58 STODDART Brian 73; Mgt 111; SCHOLEY 113 Rich 73; Wm 73 SCHORER Mary 105 STOKLE Jas 117 SCHUNTER 55 STOKOE Edw 3; John 100; SCOTT 93,108,113; John 110; Thos 3 Jos 72; J.E. 110; Mgt STOR(E)Y 33,111; Eliz 43; 114; Mary 89; Mary John 43 Ann 110 STORIE Wm 111 SEDGWICK Mgt 56 SELBY Wm 69 STRAUGHAN/ Geo 56; Jane 3; Jas 73 STRACHAN John 37; Mgt 37; SHADFORTH Phyllis 2; Robt 2; SHARP(E) 85,113 Robt 72 Wm 3 SHAW SHEPHERD STUDDAM/STUDHOLM(E)/STUDHAM/STUDDOM/ 85 STODDAM/SPEDD(H)AM 87 SHIELD(S) 114; And 55; Eliz 55; Geo 55; Jos 55; Robt SULLIVAN 47 SUMMERSIDE 84 55 SUMMERSON Anne 8; Geo 8; 57; Eliz 86; Sam 86 SHORT SIMCO Anne 58; John 58; Thos 8 SWAN 85; Alice 35; Ann 35; Lyonel 58; Wm 58 Jas 44,45; Jane 44,45; Dor 35; Eliz 35,94; SIMPSON Isab 100; Jane 35; Jos 74 John 33,34,35,37,94. SINCLAIR Foster 3 100,101; Joseph Wil-SKOLD 86 son 101; Mark 34,35; SLACK Eliz 78 Dor 86 Mary 35; Robt 35 SMART SWEATMAN Geo 59; Nevill Ander-SMITH/SMYTH 87,113; Alex 111; Ant son 59 74; Bridget 7; Eliz 57; TAIT John 45 Foster 85; Geo 112; Jas TALLENTIRE 86 72,108; Jane 74; John TAYLOR 58; Dor 35; Grace 86; 72,117; John Hy 117; John 39; John Wilson Jos 72; Mgt 112; Martha 117; Jos 72; Rachel Isab 111; Mary 74; 73; Walter 114 Sarah 117; Wm 72 TEASDALE Mgt 113; Robt 72,108 SMITHSON Mary Ann 73 Mgt 112; Robt 112 TELFER SMOULT Alice 94,97 TELFORD Eliz 114 SNAREY John 113; Walter 113 TERVET Marion Lennie 63; SOFTLEY 55 SOPPIT Robt 63 Barb 38,39; Edw 38,39; John 38,39; Jon 38,39; THEW Jane 111 Jos 38,39; Mary 39; THINER Eliz 74 THIRKELL/THIRKELD Robt 72,108 Matt 39; Pris 38; Wm 39 Han 70; Jas 72,108 THOMAS Jas 72,102,109; Mary SPARK(ES) 102; Rich 85 SPEARS Jos 72,108; Solomon 72, THOM(P)SON 84; Dor 55; Edw 72; 108 Eleanor 57; Eliz 83, SPENCE 87 117; Geo 70; Jas 117; Geo 72,108; John 7; SPENCER Jane 70; John 55,70, John M. 108 72,109,117; Jos 55, STAINTHORPE Sarah Isab 44; Wm 44 115; Mary Eliz 57; STARK Mary 59

	Matt 117; Peter 55; Robt 72,109; Sarah 55; Stephen
	72; Wm 55,72,109
THORNHAM	86
THORNTON	85,95
THURLOW	Thos 69
THURLOWAY	Ann 70
TOD(D)	John 67; Maria McQueen
	49; Mary 49; Matt 49;
	Rachel 67; Wm 87
TOPPING	115; Eleanor 57; Mary
	Eliz 57
TROTTER	Eliz 55; John 55; Robt
	Ramsay 55
TRUMBLE	Mgt 5
TRUNKFIELD/TR	
TULIP	111
TURNBUL(L)	John 72; John Robt 112;
	Mgt 5; Wm 72,109,112
TURNER	Alice 98; Chas 97; Emma
	97; Jas 97; John 72,97,
	114; Lancelot 96; Mary
	96; Mary D. 94; Robt 114; Wm 94,96,97,98,114
TWEEDDALE	114; WM 94,98,97,98,114 Han 9; WM 9
TWISELL	Geo 115; Jas 115; Mgt 115
TYZACK	Eleanor 111
VANDERSIDE	Wm 72
VARDY	Jane 55
VARTIE	Thos 3
VAUGHAN	102; Robt 72,109
VICKERS	Isaac 85
VIPOND	John 43
WA(I)STER	Geo 111; Matt 111
WAKE	Wm 72
WALES	Wm 72
WALKER	Eliz 112,117; Geo 112;
	Isab 57; John 57,112,117;
	John Jas 98; Rich 74;
	Wm Thos 117
WALTERS	John 72
WALTON	114; Isaac 115; Jos 72,
	109; Wm 115
WAPPAT	Ann 84; Ralph 84
WARD	93; Ann 110; Barb 73;
	Bart 73; Robt 73
WARNER	Mary 85
WASTELL	69
WATKINSON	Wm 3
WATSON	Agnes 112; Ann 117; Eliz
	110; John D. 72; John Dent
	109; Mgt 73,103,110; Ralph
	72,109; Robt 3; Thos 72,
	112,117; Wm 72,109,112

C. Newby 105 John 78 WEARMOUTH Frank 36 Frances 73; John WEEMES/WEAMES 73; Robt 73 Mary 9 WELLS WESLEY John 72 WHALTON Sally 87 Jas 87; Mary 87 WHARRIER Humph 73; Phil 73; WHARTON Thos 73 Wm 3 WHIRLOW WHITE 86; Jos (alias Walton) 72,109; ... 72 66,113; Chas 63,64; WHITEHEAD Geo 64; Marion Veitch 63; Nich 63, 64; Nich Mason 63; Robt 63,64; Thos 64 WHITFIELD/WIDDEFIELD Robt 111 WHITEOAK 111 WIBE/WILE Thos 72,109 WIDDRINGTON/de 34; John 65; Mgt 64; WODERINGTON Roger 65 Ann 59 WIGHAM 60 Wm 3 WILES WILKINSON 87; Eliz 117; Jacob 117 86 WILLCOCK Chas 118; Jas 107; WILLIAMS R. 118 Jas 72 WILLIAMSON WILSON 8; Chris 50,51,52; Cuth 72; Eliz 60; Ellen 111; Francis 3; Isab 43; Jas 72, 109; Jane 50,51; John 6,72; Thos 43 R.R. 42 WINGATE Robt 117 WINTER Geo 3; Hy 72,107, 109; Isab 56; Jas 72; John 3; Mary 111 John 72 WOODHOUSE WOODWARD Andrew Marwood 110; Jane 110; John 110; Mary Ann 110; Thos 110 Hy 72 WRIGHT 111; Isab 57; Mor-YOUNG peth 9; Thos 3,56; Thos Wood 56

#### PLACE INDEX

WAWN

WEBB

WILD

WOOD

### Durham

AUCKLAND ST. ANDREW	74,106,107,110	105,106,110,111,117;
AUCKLAND ST. HELEN	50,115	St.Mary 11; Woolhouse
BARNARD CASTLE	11,48,56,70,71,72,	Farm, Marwood 56

	-	540	11 10 105 111.
BEAMISH	71	ESH	11,12,105,111;
BILLINGHAM	11,113; Port Clar-		Langley 105;
	ence 11		St Mich, Esh
BIRTLEY	11,104; St Jos 11		Laude 11; St
BISHOP AUCKLAND	11,39,50,56,84,85,104,		Patrick, Langley
	108,112; Newgate St		Moor 12; The
	112; St Wilf 11; South		Queen of Martyrs,
	ka 56		Lon Winning 12;
BISHOPWEARMOUTH	43,44,59,70,84,100,	•	Ushaw College II
	105,106,107,108,109,	ETHERLEY	71
	112,117; Bethel Chapel,	FELLING	11,57,75,76,86,
	Villiers St 59; Charles		87; Felling Hall
	St 105; Front St 106;		76; Felling Shore
	Geo & Dragon 106; Hed-		75; High Felling
	worth St 105; High St		57,76; St Patrick
	106; Moore St 43;		ll; Snowdens Hole
	Northumberland St 106;		75
	West Wear St 107	FERRYHILL	111
BLACKHILL	11	FISHBURN	71,74
BLAYDON	12; St Jos 12	FULWELL	89
BOLDON	12,49,113; Cleadon 49;	GAINFORD	11,108,112
	The Sacred Heart 12	GATESHEAD	9,11,12,35,48,57,
BRANCEPETH	58		70,71,72,86,87,
BURDON	113		100,107,112,113,
CASTLE EDEN	105		114; High St 86;
CHESTER-LE-STREET	5,12,48,56,72,104,107,		Oakwellgate 114;
	109,112,113; St Cuth 12		St Jos 11; St Os-
CLIMARY DILMONE (?)			wald, Wrekenton
COCKERTON	82		12; West St Meth
COCKFIELD	85		Ch 113; Wrekenton
CONSETT	57,86,111; Conside 57;		72
••••	Iron Works 86	GREATHAM	72
COXHOE	11; Sts Jos, Patrick &	HAMSTERLEY	39,50,51,52,106;
••••••	Cuth 11		Edgeknowle Farm
CROOK	11		50; Harperley Stn
CROXDALE	ll; St Herbert ll		50,51,52; Monk-
DARLINGTON	11,34,48,70,71,72,82,85,		field Farm 50,51,
211122110201	86,106,107,113; St Aug		52
	11; Sts Wm & Fran 11;	HART	113
	Stockton & Darl Rlwy	HARTLEPOOL	11,34,49,57,58,
	115; Summerhouse 85		109,111; St Jos
DAWDON	108		11; The Immaculate
DENTON	56		Conception 11;
DURHAM	6,9,11,59,70,71,72,73,		W. Hartlepool 34
Dottini	85,86,89,102,103,105,	HASWELL	110; Haswell Moor
	107,109,110,111,113,114;		110
	Cath 88,89; Elvet 107,	HAUGHTON-LE-SKE	
	110; Elvet Bridge 107;	HEBBURN	12,49
	Framwellgate Moor 85;	HEIGHINGTON	115
	Gaol 70,72,102; Old El-	HERRINGTON	87
	vet 111; St Cuth 11; St		70,72,86; Easing-
	Giles 109; St Godric 11;		ton Lane 70,86;
	St Nich 71,114; Silver		Hetton Hall 72
	St 105; The Deanery 6	HEWORTH	75,111,113
EASINGTON	11,71,73; Our Lady of	HIPHILL	70
LASINGION	Victories 11		RING 11,48,71,105,
EBCHESTER	38		107,108,113;
EDMONDBYERS	105; Edmondbyers Moor		Colliery Row 105;
Bonombi Bill	105, Edmonubyers moor		St Mich 11
EGGLESTONE	72	HULL (?)	73
ELTON	73	HURWORTH-ON-TEI	
ESCOMB	57	HUTTON HENRY	11; Sts Peter &
			Paul 11

- 23 -

HYLTON	43,56,72,105,108;	SOUTH SHIELDS	5,11,12,48,49,55,
	Hylton Ferry 108;		?56,57,58,70,71,72,
	Percy Hotel 108;		73,86,106,107,110,
	South Moor House 56		112,113; St Bede 11;
JARROW	9,11,48,49,55,71,83,		St Pet & Paul 12;
Unitito w	84,86,97,105,108,		-
			Slakey Row 112;
	109,110,111,113;		Westoe 58,72,112
	St Bede 11	SPENNYMOOR	8,57; King St 8
KIRK MERRINGTON	8,111	STAINDROP	87
LAMESLEY	70,71,87; Ravens-	STAINTON	104,108
	worth 70	STANHOPE	72,78,79,80,84,85,86,
LANCHESTER	39,57,70,106,110,		114,115; Cap Hill 84;
	113,115; Burnhope		Daddry 80; Harthope-
	110; High Conside		burn 78; Hilltop 80;
	110; Shotley Grove		Pinfold House, Daddry
	39		Shields 79; St Johns
LEADGATE	11,108; Our Blessed		Chap 78,115; Westgate
DEADGATE	Lady & St Jos 11;		
	•		85,115
	Redwell Hills 108	STANLEY	12; St Jos 12
LONG NEWTON	107	STOCKTON-ON-TEE	S 11,48,49,73,104,108,
LUTTERWORTH	115		110,111,112; St Mary
MIDDLETON-IN-TEE	SDALE 87,112		ll; Wesleyan Chap 110
MIDDRIDGE	87	STRANTON	72,104,107
MONKWEARMOUTH	43,64,71,72,86,89,	STYFORD	85
	105,106,107,108,117;	SUNDERLAND	5,8,10,11,12,43,44,48,
	Colliery 107; Mill-		57,59,70,71,72,73,84,
	field 89; St Pet 117		85,86,87,89,99,100,
MUGGLESWICK	105,111; Muggleswick		
moddhow ron	Moor 105; Rlwy Tav-		103,104,106,107,108,
			109,111,112,113,117,
	ern 111; Tween House		118; Arcade Tavern
	Moor 111		106; Docks 109; Ex-
NEWBOTTLE	71		change 100; Fawcett
NEWTON CAP	68,85; Hartlaw 85		St 84; Grey St 84;
OUSTON	70,71		High St 43,100,108;
PENSHAW	84		Howick St 118; Hunter
PITTINGTON	111		Ter 84; Nile St 43,44;
REDMARSHALL	113		Quayside 100; St Benet
RIARTH COLEATH (?	?) 71		10,11; St Jos 10,12;
RYHOPE	12,110; St Patrick		St Leonard 10,11; St
	12,110, 50 100110		Mary 10,11; St Patrick
RYTON	6,7,11,48,73,95;		
RIION			10,11; Silksworth,St
	Greenside 73; Stella		Leonard 12; Sunderland
	6,7; Stella R.C.		Echo 117,118; Sunder-
	Church 11		land Herald 103,104,117,
SACRISTON	ll; St Bede ll		118; Sunderland Times
SADBERGE	105,113; Town Farm		118; Sussex St 86; Town
	113		Hall 100; Vine St 43;
SEAHAM	11, <b>73,86,112;</b> New		Western Hill 118
	Seaham 112; St Mary	TANFIELD	46,113; Tantobie 46
	Magdalen, Seaham	THORNLEY	11,72,73,85,104; The
	Harbour 11; Seaham		Sacred Heart of
	Harbour 86; Seaton		Martyrs 11
	•		•
	73	THROSTON	106
SEATON CAREW	34,85	TOW LAW	11; St Joseph 11
SEDGEFIELD	70	TRIMDON	73,74; Fleaters Mill
SHADFORTH	70		74; Garmondsway 74;
SHERIFF HILL	71		Southfield 74; Trimdon
SHERBURN	85		Hall 74
SHILDON	87,109,113	TUDHOE	11
SHINCLIFFE	70	USWORTH	55,64,118; Colliery
			118

г з.

	40 55 104 105 110		
WASHINGTON	48,57,104,107,113;	CAMBO	40
	Colliery 107	CAMBOIS	48
WEST AUCKLAND	50,52,56,71,112; Little	CHATTON	58
	Moor Pl 52; Toft Hill	CHOLLERTON	60
	50,52	CHOPPINGTON	48
WEST RAINTON	87	CORBRIDGE	87
WHICKHAM	5,6,9,12,48,71,90,98,	CRAMLINGTON	58,71
	105,107; Dunston St	CRASTER	86
	Philip Neri 12;	DINNINGTON	107
	Swalwell 6,71,90	DODDINGTON	86
WHITBURN	49	EARSDON	9,115; Hartley 115
WHORLTON	84	EDINGTON	71
WILLINGTON	12,112; Our Lady & St	ELLINGHAM	58
	Thomas 12	ELSDON	2; Grasslee Miln 2;
WINGATE	105; Grange Colliery	HUSDON	Hudspeth 2; Knight-
WINDAIL	105, Grange Correry		
WITNE AMON			side 2; Laings Hill
WINLATON	6; Crowley Iron Works		2; The Raw, Woodside
	6; Winlaton Mill 6		2
WINSTON	56,58,84	EMBLETON	86
WITTON GILBERT		FALSTONE	113
WITTON-LE-WEAR	12,52,57,93,106; Witton	FARNE ISLANDS	42
	Park 57; Witton Pk St	FELTON	64; Felton Moor 64
	Chad 12	FENHAM	69
WOLSINGHAM	11; St Thomas 11	FORD	5
		GOSFORTH	72
Northumberland		HALLIWELL	69
		HALTWHISTLE	72,113,115; Green-
ADDERSTONE	69,85		head 72; Unthank 69
ALLENDALE	59,68; Broadwood Hall	HARBOTTLE	56; Holystone 56
	68; Hasley Well 59; Low	HARTBURN	86
	House 59; Ninebanks 59;	HAUXLEY	112
	Staward Pele 85		
ALMMOUTH.	33,34,35,36; Church	REDDON-ON-THE	-WALL 7,40,41,42,86;
	Hill 36; 'River Bank'		Breckney Hill 40,41,
			42; Dalton Lodge 41;
ALNWICK	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37		42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41
ALNWICK	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71,	HEXHAM	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69,
ALNWICK	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine	HEXHAM	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69;
ALNWICK	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36;	HEXHAM	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69,
	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64	HEXHAM	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69;
ALWINTON	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114	HEXHAM HOLY ISLAND	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne
ALWINTON AMBLE	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56		42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57	HOLY ISLAND	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?)	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 RN 105
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?)	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 RN 105 83
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 NN 105 83 56 107
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?)	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH KYLOE	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 NN 105 83 56 107 5
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford House 83; Netherton 83;	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 NN 105 83 56 107 5 33,34,35,36,37,38,
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH KYLOE	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 NN 105 83 56 107 5 33,34,35,36,37,38, 64; Lesbury Farm 37;
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford House 83; Netherton 83;	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH KYLOE	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 aN 105 83 56 107 5 33,34,35,36,37,38, 64; Lesbury Farm 37; Lesbury Field 64;
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford House 83; Netherton 83; Red House 83; Sleekford 48	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH KYLOE	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 3N 105 83 56 107 5 33,34,35,36,37,38, 64; Lesbury Farm 37; Lesbury Field 64; Look Out Farm 37;
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH BEDLINGTON BELLISTER CAST	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford House 83; Netherton 83; Red House 83; Sleekford 48	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH KYLOE LESBURY	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 3N 105 83 56 107 5 33,34,35,36,37,38, 64; Lesbury Farm 37; Lesbury Field 64; Look Out Farm 37; Town Foot Farm 38
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH BEDLINGTON BELLISTER CAST	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford House 83; Netherton 83; Red House 83; Sleekford 48 LE 69	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH KYLOE LESBURY LONG BENTON	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 3N 105 83 56 107 5 33,34,35,36,37,38, 64; Lesbury Farm 37; Lesbury Field 64; Look Out Farm 37; Town Foot Farm 38 9,48,58
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH BEDLINGTON BELLISTER CAST	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford House 83; Netherton 83; Red House 83; Sleekford 48 LE 69 ED 5,44,55,56,57; Gold-	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH KYLOE LESBURY LONG BENTON LONG BENTON	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 3N 105 83 56 107 5 33,34,35,36,37,38, 64; Lesbury Farm 37; Lesbury Field 64; Look Out Farm 38 9,48,58 DN 58
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH BEDLINGTON BELLISTER CAST	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford House 83; Netherton 83; Red House 83; Sleekford 48 LE 69 ED 5,44,55,56,57; Gold- en Sq Presb Ch 44; Marygate 44	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH KYLOE LESBURY LONG BENTON LONGFRAMLINGTO LONGHORSLEY	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 RN 105 83 56 107 5 33,34,35,36,37,38, 64; Lesbury Farm 37; Lesbury Field 64; Look Out Farm 37; Town Foot Farm 38 9,48,58 DN 58 66,69
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH BEDLINGTON BELLISTER CAST BERWICK-ON-TWE	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford House 83; Netherton 83; Red House 83; Sleekford 48 LE 69 ED 5,44,55,56,57; Gold- en Sq Presb Ch 44; Marygate 44	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH KYLOE LESBURY LONG BENTON LONG BENTON	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 3N 105 83 56 107 5 33,34,35,36,37,38, 64; Lesbury Farm 37; Lesbury Field 64; Look Out Farm 37; Town Foot Farm 38 9,48,58 DN 58 66,69 38,64; Pepper Moor
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH BEDLINGTON BELLISTER CAST BERWICK-ON-TWE BLENKINSOP CAST BIRTLEY	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford House 83; Netherton 83; Red House 83; Sleekford 48 LE 69 ED 5,44,55,56,57; Gold- en Sq Presb Ch 44; Marygate 44 FLE 69	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH KYLOE LESBURY LONG BENTON LONGFRAMLINGTO LONGHORSLEY LONGHOUGHTON	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 3N 105 83 56 107 5 33,34,35,36,37,38, 64; Lesbury Farm 37; Lesbury Field 64; Look Out Farm 37; Town Foot Farm 38 9,48,58 DN 58 66,69 38,64; Pepper Moor Farm 38
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH BEDLINGTON BELLISTER CAST BERWICK-ON-TWE BLENKINSOP CAST BIRTLEY BLANCHLAND	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford House 83; Netherton 83; Red House 83; Sleekford 48 LE 69 ED 5,44,55,56,57; Gold- en Sq Presb Ch 44; Marygate 44 FLE 69 2 69	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH KYLOE LESBURY LONG BENTON LONGFRAMLINGTO LONGHORSLEY LONGHOUGHTON	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 3N 105 83 56 107 5 33,34,35,36,37,38, 64; Lesbury Farm 37; Lesbury Field 64; Look Out Farm 37; Town Foot Farm 38 9,48,58 DN 58 66,69 38,64; Pepper Moor Farm 38 5,55
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH BEDLINGTON BELLISTER CAST BERWICK-ON-TWE BLENKINSOP CAST BIRTLEY	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford House 83; Netherton 83; Red House 83; Sleekford 48 LE 69 ED 5,44,55,56,57; Gold- en Sq Presb Ch 44; Marygate 44 FLE 69 2 69 48,58,115; Belgrave	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH KYLOE LESBURY LONG BENTON LONGFRAMLINGTO LONGHORSLEY LONGHOUGHTON	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 3N 105 83 56 107 5 33,34,35,36,37,38, 64; Lesbury Farm 37; Lesbury Field 64; Look Out Farm 37; Town Foot Farm 38 9,48,58 DN 58 66,69 38,64; Pepper Moor Farm 38 5,55 59,83,84; E. Matfen
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH BEDLINGTON BELLISTER CAST BERWICK-ON-TWE BLENKINSOP CAST BIRTLEY BLANCHLAND	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford House 83; Netherton 83; Red House 83; Sleekford 48 LE 69 ED 5,44,55,56,57; Gold- en Sq Presb Ch 44; Marygate 44 FLE 69 2 69 48,58,115; Belgrave Cresc 115; North Blyth	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH KYLOE LESBURY LONG BENTON LONGFRAMLINGTO LONGHORSLEY LONGHOUGHTON	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 3N 105 83 56 107 5 33,34,35,36,37,38, 64; Lesbury Farm 37; Lesbury Field 64; Look Out Farm 37; Town Foot Farm 38 9,48,58 DN 58 66,69 38,64; Pepper Moor Farm 38 5,55
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH BEDLINGTON BELLISTER CAST BERWICK-ON-TWE BLENKINSOP CAST BIRTLEY BLANCHLAND BLYTH	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford House 83; Netherton 83; Red House 83; Sleekford 48 LE 69 ED 5,44,55,56,57; Gold- en Sq Presb Ch 44; Marygate 44 TLE 69 2 69 48,58,115; Belgrave Cresc 115; North Blyth 48	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH KYLOE LESBURY LONG BENTON LONGFRAMLINGTO LONGHORSLEY LONGHOUGHTON	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 3N 105 83 56 107 5 33,34,35,36,37,38, 64; Lesbury Farm 37; Lesbury Field 64; Look Out Farm 37; Town Foot Farm 38 9,48,58 DN 58 66,69 38,64; Pepper Moor Farm 38 5,55 59,83,84; E. Matfen
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH BEDLINGTON BELLISTER CAST BERWICK-ON-TWE BLENKINSOP CAST BIRTLEY BLANCHLAND BLYTH BOULMER	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford House 83; Netherton 83; Red House 83; Sleekford 48 LE 69 ED 5,44,55,56,57; Gold- en Sq Presb Ch 44; Marygate 44 FLE 69 2 69 48,58,115; Belgrave Cresc 115; North Blyth 48 64	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH KYLOE LESBURY LONG BENTON LONGFRAMLINGTO LONGHORSLEY LONGHOUGHTON	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 3N 105 83 56 107 5 33,34,35,36,37,38, 64; Lesbury Farm 37; Lesbury Field 64; Look Out Farm 37; Town Foot Farm 38 9,48,58 DN 58 66,69 38,64; Pepper Moor Farm 38 5,55 59,83,84; E. Matfen 83,84; New Wall
ALWINTON AMBLE ANCROFT BABK HEAD (?) BAKEN (?) BAMBURGH BEDLINGTON BELLISTER CAST BERWICK-ON-TWE BLENKINSOP CAST BIRTLEY BLANCHLAND BLYTH	Hill 36; 'River Bank' 36; St Waleric 36,37 5,33,36,37,64,67,68,71, 72,84,85; 'Lovaine House' 36; Percy St 36; St Mich 37; Shipley 64 114 56; Broomhill 56 57,95; Scremerston 57 71 71 58,69,83,85; Castle 69 48,83,84; Hartford House 83; Netherton 83; Red House 83; Sleekford 48 LE 69 ED 5,44,55,56,57; Gold- en Sq Presb Ch 44; Marygate 44 TLE 69 2 69 48,58,115; Belgrave Cresc 115; North Blyth 48	HOLY ISLAND HONEYCROOK BUI HOWICK INGOE KILLINGWORTH KYLOE LESBURY LONG BENTON LONGFRAMLINGTO LONGHORSLEY LONGHOUGHTON	42; Dalton Lodge 41; Heddon Laws 41 2,8,44,48,55,59,69, 87,112; Dilston 69; Hale House 59; Tyne Green 112 48,85 N 105 83 56 107 5 33,34,35,36,37,38, 64; Lesbury Farm 37; Lesbury Field 64; Look Out Farm 38 9,48,58 N 58 66,69 38,64; Pepper Moor Farm 38 5,55 59,83,84; E. Matfen 83,84; New Wall House 83; Welton 83,

2

MIDDLETON	70	THIRSTON	114; Eshott Red-
MORLEY FELL	105		house 114
MORPETH	40,48,76,85,97; Golden	TWEEDMOUTH	48,55,57; Alladene
	Lion 97; Winton House 76		Grange
NETHERWITTON	85	TYNEMOUTH	40,44,57,58,83;
NEWBROUGH	38		St Peter 44
NEWBURN	6,7,59; Chapel House, E.	WALLSEND	48,55,72,111
	Denton 7; E. Denton 6;	WALLTOWN	69
	Lemington 6,7; Sugley 6;	WALWICK GRANGE	69
	Sugley House 6,7; Wal-	WARDEN	38
	bottle 7	WARK	2
NEWCASTLE-UPON		WARKWORTH	- 41,96,97; Castle
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	44,48,55,57,58,59,66,70,		41; School 97;
	71,72,76,87,95,96,97,99,		Sunniside 41
	100,101,105,107,110,111,	WHALTON	85
	112,113,114,115; All Sts		58,115
		WHITLEY BAY	•
	43,58,95,96,97; <u>All</u>	WHITTONSTALL	38.39; Newlands 39
	Souls 110; Bruce's	WIDDRINGTON	83; Linton 83
	School 96; City Rd 95;	WOODHORN	33,34,59; Lvnfield
	Crescent Pl 114; Debtors		House Farm 34
	Prison 99; Dial & Swan	WYLAM	59,69
	97; Fleshmarket 97;		
	Forth St 107; General	BEDFORDSHIRE	Bedford 76
	Cemy 44; Groatmarket 44;	BERKSHIRE	Windsor 75 (Castle
	Jesmond 9,69,76; Maiden		75)
	St 114; Mitford St 87;	CAMBRIDGESHIRE	Cambridge 88 (Uni-
	Newcastle Chronicle 96;		versity 88); New-
	Newcastle Courant 42;		market 88; Over 88
	New Rd 95; Pilgrim St	CHESHIRE	Birkenhead 71
	107; Quayside 95,96; St	CUMBERLAND	Alston 78,80 (Front
	Andrews 9,43,95; St Jas		St 78, Nenthall 78);
	58,76; St Nich 97; Scots-		Appleby 106; Bramp-
	wood Rd 115; Shieldfield		ton 115; Castle
	55; Stanhope St 114; The		Carrock 115; Farlam
	Side 97,111; Tyne St 87;		115; Harrington 86;
	United Presb Ch, Black-		Orton 85; Penrith
	ett St 55; Walker 9;		99; Plumpton 98;
	Westgate Rd 115		Ravenstonedale 118;
NEWTON-BY-THE-	<b>—</b>		Whitehaven 86;
NORHAM	48,69; Thornton 69;		Wigton 55; Working-
	Twizell 69		ton 57
NORTH SHIELDS	44,48,?56,60,71,97,?113,	DERBYSHIRE	
NORTH SHIELDS	114; St Cuth R.C. Ch 60	DERDISTIRE	Bentrick 71;
NORTH SUNDERLA	-	DEVON	Claylin 68
OTTERBURN	2; Otterburn Hall 2	DEVON	Plymouth 71
-	-	ESSEX	71; Harwich 71; S.
OV INGHAM	7,39,59		Ockendon 59; Strat-
PONTELAND	83,113; Berwick Hills 83		ford 67
RENNINGTON	5,37,38,83; Rennington		Gt Barrington 56
	House Farm 37,38	HAMPSHIRE	Eling 71;
ROTHBURY	67,76; 'Pondicherri' 76;		Southampton 86
	Rifleman Inn 67	ISLE OF WIGHT	71
ST JOHN LEE	38	HEREFORDSHIRE	Ross-on-Wye 111
SEATON DELAVAL	•	KENT	Deal 72; Deptford
	Monkseaton 83		117; Erith 86;
SHILBOTTLE	33		Maidstone 72;
SHILVINGTON	83; Broadlaw 83		Sheerness 45;
SHOTLEY	38		Sutton 72
SIMONBURN	55,69,87,113	LANCASHIRE	Ashton-under-Lyne
SLALEY	59		71; Hatter Heath 70;
STAMFORDHAM	55		Lancaster 97; Liver-
SWINHOE	83		pool 5,70,71,72,81,

Const Date of the Local Division of the Loca

.

•

2

.

96,112; Manchester 72,81; Ormskirk 113; Wigan 72 LINCOLNSHIRE Boston 71; Spalding 71 LONDON 42,45,47,56,59,70,71, 72,75,76,81,96,97,99, 102,103,117; Friary Church 117; Hackney Rd 96; Hart St 45; Kensal Green 81; London Gazette 102,103; St Giles 71; University College School 98 MIDDLESEX Fulham 71; Paddington 111 (Westbourne Ter 111); Spitalfields 72; Stepney 74 (St Dunstan 74); Westminster 88 NORFOLK Lynn 70; New Walsoken (New Walsingham) 111; West Walton 111 NOTTINGHAMSHIRE Nottingham 70 OXFORDSHIRE Oxford 6,88 (University 88, University College 88) SUFFOLK Mildenhall 70 STAFFORDSHIRE Horninglow 71; Lapley 66; Newcastle-under-Lyme 72 SURREY 72; Clapham 70 WARWICKSHIRE Warwick 112 WESTMORLAND Clargill 105; Helbeck 73; Lowther 98,99 (Castle 98, Church 99) WILTSHIRE Marlborough 72 WORCESTERSHIRE Belbroughton 6 YORKSHIRE Draycole? 70; Weaterley? 70; York 73 Bridlington 48; Huggate EAST RIDING 86; Hull 5,6,72,?73,86, 104; Sculcoates 5 NORTH RIDING Acklam 86; Barton 70, 71; Bellerby 113; Boulton-on-Swale 33; Bowes 73; Cotherstone 72; Croft 69; Lasingwold 72; Gilling East 73 (Gillingwood 73); Guisborough 49,85; Harwood Dale 72; High Worsall 72; Hutton Rudby 8; Kirkleatham 49; Leyburn 110,113; Malton 72; Middlesbrough 48,49,72,73,102, 109 (Low Commercial St 102,109); Middleton Tyas 33,34; Northallerton 84,113; Ormesby 117; Redcar 49; Reeth 73; Richmond 70,110; Robin Hoods Bay 6;

Romaldkirk 70,78, 112; Stainton 87; Thornaby-on-Tees 56; Uckerby 33,34 (Mill House Farm 34) WEST RIDING Bradford 86; Fishlake 72; Halifax 86; Harrogate 37; Heckmondwike 67; Kippax 69; Leeds 67 (Wortley 67); Sedbergh 85; Sheffield 99; Swillington 69 \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ WALES ANGLESEY Holyhead 86 CARDIGAN Aberystwyth 111 GLAMORGAN Cardiff 117 (New Cemetery 117); Llandaff 117; Swansea 72 \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ SCOTLAND ANGUS Dundee 72 AYRSHIRE Dundonald 87 (Crooks 87) BERWICKSHIRE Cockburnspath 44; Foulden 5: BUTE Rothesay 71 DUMFRIES-SHIRE Annan 114 E. LOTHIAN Cowden 63; Dunbar 64; Haddington 63; Oldhamstocks 64 **INVERNESS-SHIRE** Inverness 72 LANARKSHIRE Glasgow 44,71 MIDLOTHIAN Dalkeith 117; Edinburgh 5,44,46, 70,71,72,114 (St Andrew 70, University 46, West Kirk 72) PERTHSHIRE Perth 72,73 (St Johns 73) RENFREWSHIRE Port Glasgow 71 SHETLAND ISLANDS 71 \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ IRELAND ANTRIM Belfast 71,72 ARMAGH Black Water 70; Fachill 71 CAVAN 72 CORK Cork 47 DOWN 72; Newry 71 DUBLIN 71,72,118 Pallinstree 71 GALWAY KERRY 71 KILDARE 71 KILKENNY Rowan 71

LEITRIM

72; Drumbolam 71

LONDONDERRY Gothgarn 71;

	Mackra 71	MALDIVE ISLANDS	97
LOUTH	71	MALTA	45
MAYO	72; Ballimore 71	NEW ZEALAND	Canterbury 87; Christ-
MONAGHAN	College Hall 71;		church 117; Dunedin
	Dorally 71; Lisne-		118; Greymouth 89;
	kelly 71; Maracloon		Palmerston, Otago 49;
	71; Tullanescal 71		Port Nelson 117;
ROSCOMMON	Cressnal 70;		Raetahi 49; Shag Valley
	Kilmore 71	· · · ·	49; Wanganni 118 (Wan-
SLIGO	Carrarah 71; Farmoy		ganni Chronicle 118)
	71; Sligo 72,73	NORWAY	72
?	Newry Kilaney 71	PORTUGAL	Lisbon 45,117
· · · · · ·		SOUTH AFRICA	Kimberley 118 (De Beers
JERSEY	71,72		diamond mine 118)
		USSR	Archangel 117
AUSTRALIA	Adelaide 85;	USA	71,72; Albany 2; Clay-
	Sydney 84,89		ton County, Iowa 51;
BELGIUM	Bruges 118		Coquille River 51,52;
CANADA	Port Hope, Ont. 51;		Dubuque, Iowa 50;
	Quebec 117		Fayette, Iowa 50,51,52;
CAPE VERDE ISL	ANDS 97		Galena, I11. 50,51;
CHINA	Shanghai 118		Geneva, NY State 3;
COLOMBIA	Buenaventura 117		Hall, Seneca, NY State
FRANCE	71; Cannes 118		2,3; Long Island 9;
GERMANY	Cuxhaven 117; Ham-		Marfa, Texas 86;
	burg 118; Hamlyn 77;		Mineral Point, Wisc.
	Hattendorf 77;		50; New York 2,71,108,
	Oldenburg 77; Swine-		117; Pecos, Texas 86;
	munde 117; Wiebek/		Roswell, New Mexico
	Wiebig 57,76		86; San Francisco 118
HOLLAND	70; Flushing 71;		(Berkeley 118);
	Heenewood 72		Schenectady 2
INDIA	Calcutta 97,117;		
	Madras 85; Patna 76		
	INDEX TO ARTIC	LES AND FEATURE	<u>s</u>

3

•

ADVERTISEMENTS	92
'A GROUP OF TRIMDON LEASES'	73
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING	118
'A TALE OF SERENDIPITY'	44
CARR FAMILY	44; A Tale of Serendipity 44
CEMETERIES	81
CENSUS RETURNS	46,48,70; Locally held copies of Census
	Returns 48; The Black Sheep 70; Two
	Census Stories 46
COLLEGE OF ARMS	68; The Bacon Arms 68
CRIMINAL RECORDS	70; Some Black Sheep were Blacker than
	Others 102; The Black Sheep 70
DEEDS OF PROPERTY	43; Hodgson and Ord - a home in Nile
	Street, Sunderland 43
DODDS FAMILY	94; Eight Great-Grandparents, an example
	of simple research into the History of
	an Ordinary Family 94
'DURHAM CATHOLIC PARISH REGISTERS	
BEFORE 1900'	10
EDITORIAL	32,62,92
'EIGHT GREAT GRAND-PARENTS, AN	
EXAMPLE OF SIMPLE RESEARCH INTO	
THE HISTORY OF AN ORDINARY FAMILY'	94
EMIGRANT FAMILIES	2,50; 'Northumbrians All' 2; 'Some Family
	Links between Co. Durham and the State of

Iowa in the Mid-Nineteenth Century' 50 ENGLISH HERALDIC CONGRESS AND STUDY DAY 101 'FAMILY MYSTERIES OR FOG IN THE DALES' 78 'GEOGRAPHICAL RESEARCH AN AN AID TO GENEALOGY' 33 'HODGSON AND ORD - A HOME IN NILE STREET, SUNDERLAND' 43 HOLMES FAMILY 78; Family Mysteries or Fog in the Dales 78 'HOW FAR BACK CAN ANCESTORS BE TRACED! 63 INDEXES 13 'INK IN THE FAMILY' 67 'JOHN LAWS OF BRECKNEY HILL (1765-1844)' 40 JOSEPH WILSON SWAN 101 KIDD FAMILY 80; Family Mysteries or Fog in the Dales 80 KNOW YOUR PARISH 116 LAMB FAMILY 83; Lost Lambs 83 LAWS FAMILY 40; John Laws of Breckney Hill (1765-1844) 40 LETTERS 50 LOCAL HISTORY 6; The Tyne Iron Company 6 'LOST LAMBS' 83 MANORIAL RECORDS 73,88; A Group of Trimdon Leases 73; Putting leaves on the Family Tree - the Estate Papers of Durham Cathedral 88 MAWSON FAMILY 98 McQUEEN FAMILY 49; To trace or not to trace 49 MEMBERS AND THEIR INTERESTS 8,55,84,110 'METHODIST RECORDS AND THEIR VALUE IN YIELDING BIOGRAPHICAL DATA' 52 MONUMENTAL INSCRIPTIONS 33,81,89,117; Cemeteries 81; Deaths Abroad 89; Died Abroad 117; Geographical Research as an aid to Genealogy 33; Strays from Tombstones at St Peter's Monkwearmouth 117 NONCONFORMIST RECORDS 10,47,52,82; Catholic Marriages 47; Durham Catholic Parish Registers before 1900 10; Methodist Records and their Value in Yielding Biographical Data 52; Some County Durham Catholics 82 'NORTHUMBRIANS ALL' 2 OFFERS OF HELP 12,60,93 PARISH DESCRIPTIONS 116; Know your Parish 116 PARISH REGISTERS 66,90,92,115; A Cautionary Tale 66; Parsonical Complaints from Lanchester, 1812 & 1813 115; Parson Grice Unmasked 90; The Permissive Society 92 PEDIGREES 63; 'How far back can ancestors be traced' 63 'POPULATION OF LONGHORSLEY IN 1788 AND 1811' 69 PRINTING INDUSTRY 68,77; A Postscript to Ink in the Family 77; Ink in the Family 68 'PUTTING LEAVES ON THE FAMILY TREE - THE ESTATE PAPERS OF DURHAM CATHEDRAL' 88 'RESEARCH INTO THE RISCHMILLER 75 FAMILY'

RISCHMILLER FAMILY	75
'SEARCHING FOR PRISCILLA'	38
SECOND TIME AROUND	5,58,87,114
SECRETARY'S JOTTINGS	4,32,62,93
'SOME BLACK SHEEP WERE BLACKER	
THAN OTHERS'	102
'SOME FAMILY LINKS BETWEEN COUNTY	
DURHAM AND THE STATE OF IOWA IN	
THE MID-NINETEENTH CENTURY'	50
SOPPITT FAMILY	38; Searching for Priscilla 38
STRAYS	66,117; A Stray Exciseman 66; Strays
	from Tombstones at St Peter's Monkwear-
	mouth 117; Died Abroad 89,117
SWAN FAMILY	100,101; The Swans of Sunderland 100;
	Joseph Wilson Swan 101
'THE BACON ARMS'	68
'THE BLACK SHEEP'	70
'THE TYNE IRON COMPANY'	6
'TO TRACE OR NOT TO TRACE'	49
TURNER FAMILY	96

#### THE WITCH OF WASHINGTON

K.D.D. Henderson

My wife descends from John Atkinson of Washington, who married Anne Keighley, "both of this parish", on May 31st 1757.

When I was trying to trace an earlier connection many years ago the sexton asked me if she was connected with "our witch". Jane Atkinson, the witch in question, "came from outside, and lived in a hut on the edge of the village. She used to walk about with a switch in her hand knocking the tops And wherever she passed the crops withered and the off the corn stalks. cattle were taken with a murrain. So in the end we tied her up and threw her into the pond where the war memorial is now. She sunk, and we pulled her out, but she was still alive so we flung her in again. The same thing happened but the third time we left her till she was dead. Rector he said we had no right to do it, because it weren't proved she was a witch. So he You'll find her name in the book." buried her in the churchyard.

"What date?" I asked.

"About that time (1757). My grandad said it was when we were fighting the French."

The actual date was 1676: "proestigiatrix, ut aiunt" - "a female conjuror, so they say".

I must admit to being perturbed by this story, having been told that my wife as a child had the unpopular habit of knocking off the heads of flowers with a stick. But I have found no Simanthas among the descendants of John and Anne, whose son Job was beadle at Washington from 1803 till his death in 1834. A great-grandson, John Job Atkinson of Bowburn Hall (now a hotel) was known as the Father of Ventilation (in coal mines), and his son, Sir William, discovered, and after fifteen years of effort persuaded the industry, that coal dust is subject to spontaneous combustion.

2

To round off the story, a descendant of Job Atkinson in the seventh generation, born in Brisbane in January 1977, was christened Job after the beadle in Washington.

# STRAY

Headstone, Holy Trinity Church, Dupoon, Scotland: SOLOMON SUTHERLAND, South Shields, Town Councillor, who died in Dunoon, 10th July 1870.